
 1 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

N.C. WILDLIFE RESOURCES COMMISSION 
April 21, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. 

1751 Varsity Drive 
NCWRC Conference Room, 5th Floor 

Raleigh, North Carolina 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER - Chairman John Litton Clark 
 
This meeting is being recorded as a public record and is audio streaming live at 
www.ncwildlife.org. As a courtesy to others please turn off all cell phones during the 
meeting.  
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Commissioner Jim Cogdell 
 
 
INVOCATION -   Commissioner Mike Johnson 
 
 
RECOGNITION OF VISITORS 
 
 
MANDATORY ETHICS INQUIRY - North Carolina General Statute 138A-15(e) mandates 
that the Commission Chair shall remind all Commissioners of their duty to avoid conflicts of 
interest and appearances of conflict under this Chapter, and that the chair also inquire as to 
whether there is any known conflict of interest or appearance of conflict with respect to any 
matters coming before the Commission at this time.  It is the duty of each Commissioner who is 
aware of such personal conflict of interest or of an appearance of a conflict, to notify the Chair of 
the same. Chairman Clark 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Take action on the February 11, 2016 Wildlife Resources 
Commission meeting minutes as written in the exhibit and distributed to members (EXHIBIT A) 
 

http://www.ncwildlife.org/


 2 

ADMINISTRATION 
 
Financial Status Report - Receive a financial status report on the Wildlife Operating Fund and 
Wildlife Endowment Fund – Lindsey Riddick, Budget Analyst (EXHIBIT B) 
 
 
2015 LAWRENCE G. DIEDRICK AWARD PRESENTATION – Presentation of the 2015 
Lawrence G. Diedrick Small Game Award Individual Category to David Palmer and Family - 
Gordon Myers, Executive Director with introduction by Dr. David Cobb, Wildlife Management 
Division Chief 
 
 
Break for Photographs 
 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Fisheries Committee Report – Tim Spear, Chair 
 
Land Use and Access Committee Report – Tom Berry, Chair 
 
Boating Safety Committee Report – Ray Clifton, Chair 
 
Migratory Birds/Waterfowl Committee Report – Richard Edwards, Chair 
 
Committee of the Whole Report – John Litton Clark, Chair 
 
 
AGENCY SPOTLIGHT – Receive a presentation highlighting the Back in the Woods Again 
Disabled Hunt – Sergeant Reggie Barker, Wildlife Enforcement Division 
 
 
INLAND FISHERIES DIVISION 
 
Fisheries Division Update - Receive an update on activities of the Inland Fisheries Division –
Christian Waters, Inland Fisheries Division Chief 
 
 
 
WILDLIFE EDUCATION DIVISION 
 
Wildlife Education Division Update – Receive an update on recent activities of the Wildlife 
Education Division – Kris Smith, Wildlife Education Division Chief 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
 
Wildlife Management Division Update – Receive an update on the activities of the Wildlife 
Management Division – Dr. David Cobb, Wildlife Management Division Chief 
 
2016 – 2017 Webless Migratory Birds, Resident Canada Goose, Falconry, and Waterfowl 
Seasons –Review U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service frameworks, receive public comments and 
select the 2016 – 2017 season dates and bag limits for webless migratory birds, resident Canada 
geese, falconry and waterfowl – David Cobb (EXHIBITS C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4) 
 
Season for Take of Migrant Peregrine Falcon for Use in Falconry – Consider staff 
recommendation to establish a season for taking a migrant peregrine falcon for use in falconry – 
David Cobb (EXHIBIT D) 
 
Temporary Rulemaking - Review comments and consider adoption of temporary amendments 
to 15A NCAC 10B .0202(a)(2) Bear, to move the bear season for Brunswick and Columbus 
counties, and to modify 15A NCAC 10B .0202(b)(3)  Bear, to state that bears may be taken with 
the aid of unprocessed food products during the entire open season in all counties with a bear 
season – David Cobb (EXHIBITS E-1, E-2) 
 
 
LAND AND WATER ACCESS SECTION 
 
Land Acquisitions and Property Matters 
 
Phase I Land Acquisition - Consider approval for staff to work with State Property Office and 
funding partners to develop acquisition plans for Bakers Lake Tract – Bladen County – Isaac 
Harrold, Lands Program Manager (EXHIBIT F) 
 
Phase II Land Acquisitions - Consider final approval to proceed with acquisitions of the 
following properties – Isaac Harrold (EXHIBITS G-1, G-2, G-3, G-4, G-5, G-6, G-7, G-8, G-
9, G-10, G-11) 
 

• Blue Ridge Conservancy Tracts – Ashe County 
• Bristol Creek Tracts – Burke County 
• Deviney 2014 Tract – Rutherford County 
• Deviney Brier Creek Tracts – Rutherford County 
• DMF Fisherman’s Wharf Reallocation – Hyde County 
• DOA Ocean Isle Beach Reallocation – Brunswick County 
• Eure-Horton Tracts – Gates County 
• Little Macedonia Tract – Brunswick County 
• McEachern Tract – Bladen County 
• Mashie Stomp Tract – Haywood County 
• Wycle Fork Tract – Haywood County 

 
 

 



 4 

PERIODIC REVIEW OF RULES INITIAL DETERMINATION – Consider approval of the 
initial classification report for 15A NCAC 10F (Water Safety) and 10H (Regulated Activities) 
Rules, pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A – Erica Garner, Rulemaking Coordinator (EXHIBITS H-1, 
H-2) 
 
 
WATER SAFETY RULEMAKING 
 
No Wake Zone, Slocum Creek in Havelock -  Craven County – Receive one public comment 
and consider adoption of a proposed amendment to 15A NCAC 10F .0347(a)(5), to create a no 
wake zone on a portion of Slocum Creek in the City of Havelock, Craven County  – Betsy 
Haywood, No Wake Zone Coordinator (EXHIBIT I) 
 
Temporary Rulemaking – Taylor’s Creek No Wake Zone in Beaufort – Carteret County – 
Consider agency request for temporary rulemaking to clarify and correct the description of the no 
wake zone in the waters of Taylor’s Creek, shore to shore, in Beaufort, and to publish Notice of 
Text in the NC Register with one public hearing and a public comment period – Betsy Haywood 
(EXHIBIT J) 
 
Rulemaking – No Wake Zone, Canal in Arrowhead Beach Subdivision – Chowan County – 
Approve Fiscal Note review and consider request from Chowan County to publish Notice of 
Text in the NC Register and hold one public hearing, for an amendment to 15A 10F. 0346 to 
establish a no wake zone in the waters of an unnamed canal in Arrowhead Subdivision – Betsy 
Haywood (EXHIBITS K -1, K-2) 
 
 
 
 
COMMENTS BY CHAIRMAN – John Litton Clark 
 
 
COMMENTS BY EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR – Gordon Myers 
 
 
ADJOURN 



 
MINUTES  
NC Wildlife Resources Commission 
February 11, 2016 

1  

EXHIBIT A 
April 21, 2016 

 
 

 
 

MINUTES  
February 11, 2016 

N. C. Wildlife Resources Commission Meeting 
Raleigh, North Carolina 

 
 

The February 11, 2016 N. C. Wildlife Resources Commission meeting was called to order by 
Commission Chairman John Litton Clark at 9:00 a.m. in the Commission Room at Wildlife 
Resources Commission Headquarters in Raleigh.  Clark reminded everyone that the meeting audio 
is being streamed live and will be available on the Wildlife Resources Commission website. He 
requested that everyone silence electronic devices.  Commissioners Ray Clifton and Mike Johnson 
were absent.  

 
Commissioner Mark Craig led the Pledge of Allegiance.   

 
Commissioner John Stone gave the invocation. 

 
 

WELCOME AND MANDATORY ETHICS INQUIRY  
 

Chairman Clark welcomed the Commissioners and guests. Chairman Clark advised the 
Commission of the mandatory ethics inquiry as mandated in North Carolina General Statute 138A-
15(e). Commissioner John Stone recused himself from discussion and action on Exhibits H-1 
through H-6, Exhibits I-1 through I-5, Exhibit K, and Exhibit O.   
 

 
 

COMMISSIONER ATTENDANCE 
     

John Litton Clark    Brian White 
Richard Edwards    Wes Seegars 
Nat Harris     Jim Cogdell 
Joe Budd     Neal Hanks 
John Coley     Tom Berry 
Landon Zimmer    Mark Craig 
Dean Proctor     Tommy Fonville 
John Stone     Tim Spear 
Garry Spence   



 
MINUTES  
NC Wildlife Resources Commission 
February 11, 2016 

2  

       
        
 
 
 
 
    

VISITORS 
 

Blakely Hildebrand – SELC   Dana Shook 
Lewis Bennett     Sean Maloy – NC Bowhunters Association  
Fred Harris – NC Wildlife Federation Cindy Dohner – USFWS 
Tamara Zmuda – NC Dept. of Justice Ned Jones – NC Trout Unlimited 
Derb Carter – SELC    David Viker – USFWS 
Karen Beck – NCDA & CS 
 
 
 
MINUTES 

 
On a motion by Brian White and second by Wes Seegars, the Commission approved the December 
10, 2015 Wildlife Resources Commission minutes as presented in Exhibit A. The Minutes are 
hereby incorporated into the official record of this meeting.  
 
 
ADMINISTRATION 

 
Lindsey Riddick, Budget Analyst, presented in Exhibit B the Wildlife Operating Fund and the 
Wildlife Endowment Fund as of November 30, 2015. The Operating Fund balance is 
$15,853,839.23. The Endowment Fund balance is $114,073,803.04. Expendable interest is 
$21,288,691.09.   
 
 
EVALUATION OF 2015 STATEMENT OF ECONOMIC INTEREST READ INTO THE 
MINUTES 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of NCGS §138A-15, Betsy Haywood, Ethics Liaison, read into the 
Minutes relevant portions of the evaluation by the N.C. Ethics Commission of the 2015 Statement 
of Economic Interest for Richard Edwards, District 2 Commissioner appointed by Governor Pat 
McCrory for a term ending June 30, 2021.  The evaluation in its entirety is incorporated by 
reference into the minutes of the meeting.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
MINUTES  
NC Wildlife Resources Commission 
February 11, 2016 

3  

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Land Use and Access Committee Report – Tom Berry, Chair, reported that the Land Use and 
Access Committee met on February 10, 2016. The Committee reviewed six Phase I land 
acquisitions presented by Isaac Harrold, Lands Program Manager. The LUAC will recommend 
approval by the entire Commission for staff to work with State Property and funding partners to 
develop acquisition plans for:   

• Dix Creek Tract – Haywood County 
• Long Ridge Tract – Pender County (the Committee recommendation for approval of the 

Long Ridge Tract to provide public access is dependent upon finding a funding source that 
does not compete with funding for other game lands) 

• Galloway Tract – Rockingham County 
• Hill Farm Tract – Stokes County 
• Vinson Tract – Bladen County 
• Ward (Columbia Depot) Tracts – Tyrrell County 

 
The Committee will recommend final approval by the entire Commission of five Phase II 
acquisitions: 

• Faircloth Tract – Bladen County 
• Poplin Tract – Richmond County 
• Catherine Gibson Tract – Scotland County 
• Stainback Tract – Onslow County 
• Morris Tract – Wilkes County 

 
The Committee requested that staff provide an overview of complete stewardship costs of several 
game lands. 

 
Discussion was held about the status of development of Texas Plantation and assistance by Ducks 
Unlimited to help with funding.  

 
Erik Christofferson, Deputy Director of Operations, announced that the Cleveland County 
Shooting Range will open in 45 days. The road will be paved as soon as weather permits. 

 
Mark Hamlett, Engineering Section Chief, told the Committee that construction will begin soon on 
the new Rhodes Pond dam.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
MINUTES  
NC Wildlife Resources Commission 
February 11, 2016 

4  

 
Habitat, Nongame and Endangered Species Committee Report – Mark Craig, Chair, reported 
that the Habitat, Nongame and Endangered Species Committee met on February 10, 2016. Jeff 
Hall gave a staff summary of an augmentation proposal to improve habitats to benefit gopher frog 
and ornate chorus frog populations. Staff is working to move egg masses past physical barriers to 
augment populations at Holly Shelter and Sandhills Game Lands.  

 
Todd Ewing, Aquatic Wildlife Diversity Supervisor, provided a report on the signing of a 
Candidate Conservation Agreement (CCA) for the sicklefin redhorse, a rare fish found only in 
western North Carolina and north Georgia. With funding from Duke Energy and TVA and in 
collaboration with the USFWS, Georgia Department of Natural Resources, and Eastern Band of 
Cherokee Indians (EBCI), WRC is evaluating the sicklefin redhorse to prioritize and implement 
habitat conservation measures which may assist in precluding this species from being federally 
listed.  

 
Shannon Deaton, Habitat Conservation Program Manager, presented information to the 
Committee about the Wildlife Action Plan revision. USFWS has provided feedback for the 1,000 
page document. Review has been favorable. The website for the Wildlife Action Plan will be 
activated by April.  

 
Deaton stated that the Nongame Wildlife Advisory Committee (NWAC) has provided a Resolution 
in support of establishing a framework for an elk hunting season. The NWAC has provided a 
Resolution opposing creation of a hunting season for alligators and requesting further scientific 
assessment of the alligator populations in North Carolina. The NWAC resolutions will be used to 
create agency recommendations for consideration by the Commission for elk and alligator, and for 
the Endangered Species Study, to be discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting.  

 
 

Big Game Committee Report - Neal Hanks, Chair, reported that the Committee received a 
webinar update on February 3 that introduced discussion about possible Coastal Bear Management 
Unit Zone delineations.     

 
The Big Game Committee met on February 10, 2016 for more discussion about the Coastal Bear 
Management Unit (CBMU). David Sawyer reported on the reevaluation of the five bear seasons in 
the CBMU in 2015. A cluster analysis was conducted to determine similarities and differences 
based on identified variables. Comparisons differed among the coastal counties and four zones 
were identified. The Committee was presented with potential tools for managing bear populations, 
including allowing the use of unprocessed foods for the entire bear hunting season, providing 
permit hunts within bear sanctuaries, and increasing bag limits in specific areas. A design 
framework for a Landowner Black Bear Management Assistance Program (LBMAP) was 
discussed.  The LBMAP would provide assistance to landowners and allow flexibility in bear 
harvest.  

 
Discussion was held about amending the current bear season in Columbus and Brunswick 
counties. The Big Game Committee recommends that the Commission proceed with temporary 
rulemaking for the two-county season change. The Big Game Committee also recommends that 
the Commission proceed with temporary rulemaking to allow hunting bears over unprocessed food 
during the entire season. 

 



 
MINUTES  
NC Wildlife Resources Commission 
February 11, 2016 

5  

 
Committee of the Whole Report – John Litton Clark, Chairman, reported that the Committee of 
the Whole met on February 10, 2016.  The Committee approved staff recommendation for the 
recipient of the 2015 Lawrence Diedrick Small Game Award. The recipients will receive the award 
at the April 21, 2016 WRC meeting.  

 
Christian Waters, Inland Fisheries Division Chief, reviewed the Inland Fisheries public comments 
and rule proposals for action by the Commission. 

 
Dr. David Cobb, Wildlife Management Division Chief, reviewed Wildlife Management comments 
from state-wide public hearings and rule proposals. He noted the removal of proposal H-8 
declaring the eastern cougar extinct, because action by the USFWS has not yet been taken. Gordon 
Myers, Executive Director, reviewed the Resolution to not proceed with establishing an alligator 
hunting season at this time. An Alligator Task Force would be established to develop a 
management plan for North Carolina. The Resolution will be considered for adoption by the entire 
WRC. Myers read the Resolution supporting establishment of an elk hunting season with the delay 
of issuance of any permits until the sustainability of the herd is determined. That Resolution will 
be considered by the entire Commission.  

 
Isaac Harrold, Game Lands Program Manager, reviewed public comments and proposed changes 
to game land regulations for 2016-2017. 

 
Kate Pipkin, Operations Manager, Wildlife Management, and Betsy Haywood, No Wake Zone 
Coordinator, reviewed proposed water safety rules for action by the entire Commission.  

 
Cindy Dohner and David Viker of the US Fish and Wildlife Service were welcomed by Director 
Myers. Myers has met with Dohner and Viker to discuss enhancement of communication to define 
co-management responsibilities of the Mattamuskeet National Wildlife Refuge, and health of Lake 
Mattamuskeet and the fish and wildlife populations throughout the refuge. Myers reviewed a draft 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) on the Co-Management of Certain Programs between the 
NC Wildlife Resources Commission and US Department of the Interior Fish and Wildlife Service 
on Mattamuskeet National Wildlife Refuge.  Labeled Exhibit O, the MOU will be considered by 
the entire Commission.  

                
 
 
AGENCY SPOTLIGHT – DISCOVER YOUR WILDLIFE – SRRI BASED PROGRAMS 
 
Kris Smith, Wildlife Education Division Chief, presented a spotlight highlighting Strategic 
Recruitment and Retention-based programs to create awareness and interest in hunting, fishing, 
and enjoyment of outdoor wildlife watching and recreation. SRRI based programs educate, mentor, 
and support people of all ages and abilities, creating awareness and providing access to outdoor 
places and classes for lifelong learning. Among the projects provided by the WRC are Fish for Fun 
events, lure and lanyard making, survival skills, turtle tracking, hunter education, youth hunts, 
Becoming an Outdoors Woman events, track chairs for use by disabled sportsmen, Wounded 
Warrior projects, shooting ranges, fishing tackle loaner programs, and archery programs for youth 
and adults. The Outdoor Heritage Council created by the General Assembly will work closely with 
the WRC to encourage and enhance recruitment and retention of all, and in particular youth, for 
the enjoyment of our wildlife resources.  



 
MINUTES  
NC Wildlife Resources Commission 
February 11, 2016 

6  

 
 
   
INLAND FISHERIES  

 
Inland Fisheries Update   
 
Christian Waters, Inland Fisheries Division Chief, gave an update about the activities of the Inland 
Fisheries Division. Waters reported on staff field projects including the Lake Norman hybrid 
striped bass tagging study and an evaluation of possibly stocking red drum into Hyco Lake. Due to 
water chemistry and presence of non-native, invasive tilapia, Hyco Lake has the potential to 
support red drum and provide a unique fishery in inland waters. A public input meeting to 
determine interest and to answer questions will be held on March 12 at 3 pm at Hyco Lake. Results 
from this meeting will be presented to the Fisheries Committee.  

 
 
 
 
 
ADOPTION OF 2016-2017 INLAND FISHING RULE PROPOSALS 
 
Christian Waters presented in Exhibit D a summary of comments concerning the proposed 
changes to inland fishing regulations received from state-wide public hearings held in January 
2016 and from the WRC internet portal and correspondence.  
 
On a motion by Tim Spear and second by John Coley the Commission adopted the following 
changes in the 2016-2017 fishing regulations pending approval by the Rules Review Commission 
and codification in the North Carolina Administrative Code, presented in Exhibit E: 
 

F1) Modify the lower boundary of Delayed Harvest Trout Waters on the Ararat River in Surry County, adding 
approximately 1.2 miles of Public Mountain Trout Waters. The designated reach will be the portion of the 
Ararat River adjacent to the Ararat River Greenway in Mount Airy. 

15A NCAC 10C .0205 Public Mountain Trout Waters  
 

F2) Modify the lower boundary of Hatchery Supported Trout Waters on the East Prong Roaring River in Wilkes 
County, removing approximately 1.3 miles of Public Mountain Trout Waters. The new designated reach will 
be from the Stone Mountain State Park lower boundary to the S.R. 1002 bridge. 

15A NCAC 10C .0205 Public Mountain Trout Waters  
 

F3) Clarify that the portion of Three Top Creek located on Three Top Mountain Game Land in Ashe County is 
classified as Hatchery Supported Trout Waters. 

15A NCAC 10C .0205 Public Mountain Trout Waters  
 

F4) Clarify the upper boundary of Hatchery Supported Trout Waters on Savannah Creek in Jackson County. The 
designated reach will be from Shell Branch to Cagle Branch. 

15A NCAC 10C .0205 Public Mountain Trout Waters  
 



 
MINUTES  
NC Wildlife Resources Commission 
February 11, 2016 

7  

 

 

F5) Establish an exception to the general statewide regulation for black bass in Lake Chatuge (Clay County) by 
increasing the daily creel limit from 5 fish to 10 fish in aggregate, decreasing the minimum size limit for 
Largemouth Bass from 14 inches except that two fish less than 14 inches can be retained in the daily creel to 
12 inches with no exception, and removing the minimum size limit of 14 inches for Smallmouth and Spotted 
Bass. 

15A NCAC 10C .0305 Black Bass  
 

F6) Establish an exception to the general statewide regulation for black bass in Lake Hampton (Yadkin County) 
by allowing no Largemouth Bass between 16 and 20 inches to be possessed. The daily creel limit will remain 
5 fish, and the minimum size limit will remain 14 inches except that two fish less than 14 inches can be 
retained in the daily creel. 

15A NCAC 10C .0305 Black Bass  
 

F7) Modify the exception to the general statewide regulation for black bass in the New River in Alleghany 
County downstream of Fields Dam (Grayson County, Virginia) by increasing the slot limit of 14 to 20 inches 
with only one fish greater than 20 inches to a slot limit of 14 to 22 inches with only one fish greater than 22 
inches. The daily creel limit will remain 5 fish. 

 
15A NCAC 10C .0305 Black Bass  
 

F8) Establish an exception to the general statewide regulation for crappie in Lake Chatuge (Clay County) by 
implementing 30-fish daily creel limit. There is no minimum size limit.  

 15A NCAC 10C .0306 Crappie  

 
F9) Establish an exception to the general statewide regulation for crappie in Lake Hampton (Yadkin County) by 

implementing an 8-inch minimum size limit and a 20-fish daily creel limit. 
 

15A NCAC 10C .0306 Crappie  
 

F10) Establish an exception to the general statewide regulation for Striped Bass and Bodie Bass in Lake Chatuge 
(Clay County) by increasing the daily creel limit from four fish to 15 fish in aggregate, removing the 
minimum size limit of 20 inches, and allowing only two fish greater than 22 inches to be retained. 

15A NCAC 10C .0314 Striped Bass  
 

F11) Prohibit transport, possession or release of live White Perch in waters in and west of Haywood, Buncombe, 
and Rutherford counties. 

15A NCAC 10C .0319 White Perch 
 

F12) Establish an exception to the general statewide regulation for Blue Catfish in Lake Tillery, Lake Wylie, and 
Mountain Island Reservoir by allowing only one fish greater than 32 inches to be possessed in the daily 
creel. 

15A NCAC 10C .0401 Manner of Taking Nongame Fishes: Purchase and Sale  
 

F13) Designate Atlantic Sturgeon as State Endangered when found in inland fishing waters and remove Atlantic 
Sturgeon from the State Special Concern list. The scientific name of Atlantic Sturgeon will be updated to 
match currently accepted nomenclature. 

15A NCAC 10I .0103 Endangered Species List  
15A NCAC 10I .0105 Special Concern Species Listed  



 
MINUTES  
NC Wildlife Resources Commission 
February 11, 2016 

8  

 

F14) Add dip nets when used in conjunction with a licensed hand-crank electrofisher where authorized by local 
law to the list of equipment that can be used to take nongame fish for bait or personal consumption in inland 
fishing waters with an inland fishing license. 

                15A NCAC 10C .0402 Taking Nongame Fishes for Bait or Personal Consumption 
 
 
Exhibits D and E, Fishing Rules Adoption, are hereby incorporated into the official record.

 
 
WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT  

 
Wildlife Management Update 

 
Dr. David Cobb, Wildlife Management Division Chief, presented an update about the activities of the 
Division.  Dr. Cobb announced that the deer harvest for 2015 increased statewide. Electronic reporting 
shows that the bear harvest has doubled in the mountains. Harvest is the same at the coast and has 
increased in the Piedmont. Cobb stated that 2,600 bears have been harvested so far. Cobb reported that 
a research project showing the market and non-market valuation of tundra swan indicated that 5000 
permittees provided a $2.04 million impact to North Carolina. Cobb announced that the Southeastern 
Deer Study meeting will be held in Concord next week. Director Myers will speak at that meeting. 
The NCWRC is hosting the 21st Eastern Elk Management Workshop in Cherokee April 17-20, 2016.  

 
 
 
ADOPTION OF 2016-2017 WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT RULE PROPOSALS 
 
Dr. Cobb presented Exhibit F, a summary of public comments concerning the proposed changes to 
wildlife management regulations received from state-wide public hearings held in January 2016 and 
from the WRC internet portal and correspondence.  

 
On a motion by Neal Hanks and second by John Coley, The Commission adopted changes in wildlife 
management regulations for 2016-2017 presented in Exhibit G, (H1 through H3 and H6, H7, H9 
and H10), subject to approval by the Rules Review Commission and codification in the North 
Carolina Administrative Code: 

 
H1)  Allow the sale of raw (untanned) deer hides from an animal lawfully taken by hunting, because of 

depredation, or as road kill. Individuals or deer processors would be allowed to sell raw hides.  Current 
regulations regarding the reporting and identification of harvested deer would apply, but there are no 
proposed additional tagging requirements for selling hides. Processed hides require a Trophy Sale permit in 
order to be legally sold. 
15A NCAC 10B .0118 Sale of Wildlife  
 

H2)  Change the definition of a bear cub from any bear weighing less than 50 pounds to any bear weighing less 
than 75 pounds. 
15A NCAC 10B .0107 Black bear  
 

H3) Remove Gum Swamp in Pamlico and Beaufort counties from the bear sanctuary program. 
  15A NCAC 10B .0202 Bear 

 



CWRC Meeting 
Minutes 

9  

 

H6) Change a Commission rule that prohibits hunting on Sundays with firearms to conform to state law that regulates 
hunting on Sundays. State law passed in the 2015 legislative session allows hunting on Sundays with firearms 
on private lands with the following restrictions: 

• Hunting is limited to any landowner or member of the landowner's family, or any person with written 
permission from the landowner.       9 

• Hunting on Sunday between 9:30 A.M. and 12:30 P.M. is prohibited, except on controlled hunting 
preserves. 

• Hunting of migratory birds on Sunday is prohibited. 
• The use of a firearm to take deer that are run or chased by dogs on Sunday is prohibited. 
• Hunting on Sunday within 500 yards of a place of worship or any accessory structure thereof, or within 

500 yards of a residence not owned by the landowner, is prohibited. 
• Hunting on Sunday in a county having a population greater than 700,000 people is prohibited (currently 

Wake and Mecklenburg counties). 
 

The Commission rule will continue to allow hunting on Sundays with archery equipment and falconry on private 
lands in all counties from one-half hour before sunrise to one-half hour after sunset, except migratory game birds 
cannot be taken. 
15A NCAC 10B .0201 Prohibited taking and manner of take  

 

H7) Designate the Red Knot and the Northern Long-eared Bat as federally-listed threatened species in North 
Carolina. 

15A NCAC 10I .0104 Threatened species listed  
 

H9) Remove the elk from the state list of special concern species. 

15A NCAC 10I .0105 Special concern species listed  
 

H10) Allow for Wildlife Damage Control Agents (WDCAs) to renew their status every three years by attending the 
Commission’s training course or completing an equivalent in continuing education courses. 

15A NCAC 10B .0106 Wildlife taken for depredations 
 

 
The Commission did not approve H4 presented in Exhibit G.  Based on public comments in 
opposition to an alligator season and the need to further refine conditions under which alligator 
hunting should be allowed, the Commission adopted a Resolution Regarding Proposed 
Establishment of an Alligator Season in North Carolina. Mark Craig made a motion to adopt. The 
motion was seconded by John Coley and the Resolution was adopted unanimously. The Resolution is 
hereby incorporated into the official record of this meeting as Attachment 1.  
 
On a motion by Tom Berry and second by Nat Harris, the Commission approved H5 presented in 
Exhibit G in the form of a Resolution. 
 
H5) Open an elk hunting season with the following restrictions: 

• The season for elk is from October 1 to November 1. 
              • Hunting is by permit only. 

• The bag limit is one per permit. 
• Elk may be taken by any legal firearms or archery equipment. 
 

The Resolution Regarding Proposed Establishment of an Elk Hunting Season in North Carolina is 
incorporated into the Actions as Attachment 2.  



CWRC Meeting 
Minutes 

10  

 
             
TEMPORARY RULEMAKING – MODIFY 15A NCAC 10B .0202 BEAR 
 
Upon a motion by Wes Seegars and second by Neal Hanks, the Commission approved taking to 
public hearings proposed temporary rulemaking for 15A NCAC 10B .0202(a)(2)  Bear, to move the 
bear hunting season for Brunswick and Columbus counties to begin the second Monday in 
November and end January 1 and to modify 15A NCAC 10B .0202(b)(3)  Bear, to state that bears 
may be taken with the aid of unprocessed food products during the entire open season in all 
counties with a bear season.  
 
            
PROPERTY MATTERS 
 
Phase I Land Acquisitions 
 
With Commissioner John Stone recusing himself from any participation or action on Exhibits H-1 
through H-6, the Commission approved requests for agency staff to begin working with the State 
Property Office and funding partners to develop acquisition plans for the following properties 
presented in Exhibits H-1, H-2, H-3, H-4, H-5, and H-6. The motion was made by Tom Berry to 
approve, with the noted condition for Long Ridge Tract in Pender County (H-2), seconded by Tommy 
Fonville, and carried.  
 

• Dix Creek Tract – Haywood County (H-1) 
• Long Ridge Tract -  Pender County (H-2) 

The Commission approved the request for staff to develop an acquisition plan for the Long 
Ridge Tract for purposes of access and as a conservation land, with the understanding that 
typical funding sources for game lands acquisitions will not be used. 

• Galloway Tract – Rockingham County (H-3) 
• Hill Farm Tract – Stokes County (H-4) 
• Vinson Tract – Bladen County (H-5) 
• Ward Columbia Depot Tracts – Tyrrell County (H-6) 

 
Exhibits H-1 through H-6 are hereby incorporated into the official record of this meeting.  
 
 
Phase II Land Acquisitions 
 
With Commissioner John Stone recusing himself from any participation or action on Exhibits I-
1 through I-5, the Commission voted on a motion by Tom Berry and second by John Coley and 
gave final approval to proceed with acquisition of the following properties: 

• Faircloth Access Tract – Bladen County (I-1) 
• Poplin Tract – Richmond County (I-2) 
• Catherine Gibson Tract – Scotland County (I-3) 
• Stainback Tract – Onslow County (I-4) 
• Morrison Tract – Wilkes County  (I-5) 

 
Exhibits I-1 through I-5 are hereby incorporated into the official record of this meeting.  



CWRC Meeting 
Minutes 

11  

             
 
ADOPTION OF GAME LAND MANAGEMENT RULES FOR 2016-2017 
 
Summary of Public Comments Pertaining to Proposed Changes in Game Land Regulations- 
Isaac Harrold presented a summary of public comments received from statewide district public 
hearings held in January 2016 and from the WRC internet and correspondence, pertaining to proposed 
changes to game land regulations. (EXHIBIT J) 
 
 
2016-2017 Game Land Management Rules – With Commissioner John Stone recusing himself 
from any participation or action on Exhibit K, the Commission adopted proposed changes in game 
land management regulations presented in Exhibit K. The motion was made by Jim Cogdell, 
seconded by Tommy Fonville, and carried.  Regulations adopted are subject to approval by the Rules 
Review Commission and codification in the NC Administrative Code.  

 
G1) Move the opening date for hunting deer with all lawful weapons on Lake Mattamuskeet and 

Alligator River National Wildlife Refuges (NWRs) from the Saturday on or nearest October 
15 to the Saturday on or nearest September 10. 
15A NCAC 10B .0203 Deer  
 

G2)  Prohibit all public use from sunset to sunrise on those portions of game land posted as “Day 
Use Only Zones”. 
15A NCAC 10D .0102 General regulations regarding use  
 

G3)  Modify existing game land rules regarding the possession of firearms on US Army Corps of 
Engineers (USACE) project lands and waters to comply with current applicable federal 
regulations contained in the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 36, Chapter III, Part 327.13. 
15A NCAC 10D .0102 General regulations regarding use  
 

G4) Allow youth to hunt in managed waterfowl impoundments from ½ hour before sunrise until 
sunset on the two youth waterfowl days following the end of the regular waterfowl seasons. 
15A NCAC 10D .0103 Hunting on game lands  
 

G5) Prohibit the use of dogs for pursuing or taking foxes during the period of March 15 through 
July 15 on Bladen Lakes State Forest Game Land in Bladen County. 
15A NCAC 10D .0103 Hunting on game lands  
 

G6) Expand the opportunity for horseback riding on R. Wayne Bailey-Caswell Game Land by 
allowing horses on gated roads and trails that are posted for equestrian use. 
15A NCAC 10D .0103 Hunting on game lands  
 

G7) Remove text from the North Carolina Administrative Code which establishes Catawba Game 
Land in Catawba County. 
15A NCAC 10D .0103 Hunting on game lands  
 
 
            



CWRC Meeting 
Minutes 

12  

G8) Allow horseback riding on Chowan Swamp Game Land anytime from May 16 through 
August 31 and on Sundays only from September 1 through May 15 on those roads that are 
open to vehicular traffic and on those gated roads and trails that are specifically posted for 
equestrian use. 
15A NCAC 10D .0103 Hunting on game lands  
 

G9) Remove posted Archery Zones from the permit requirement for hunting turkeys on Harris 
Game Land. 
15A NCAC 10D .0103 Hunting on game lands  
 

G10 Designate Holly Shelter Game Land as a 6 day per week game land and restrict dog hunting 
for deer and bear to Mondays, Wednesdays, and Saturdays, Thanksgiving, Christmas, and 
New Year’s days, except as otherwise authorized by permit on the Bear Garden Tract of 
Holly Shelter Game Land. 
15A NCAC 10D .0103 Hunting on game lands 
 

G11 Allow geocaching on Holly Shelter and Stones Creek Game Lands during closed seasons and 
on closed days for taking bear, deer, turkey and waterfowl. 
15A NCAC 10D .0103 Hunting on game lands  
 

G12 Expand opportunity for raccoon and opossum hunting on the J. Robert Gordon Field Trial 
Area, which is currently limited to open days from the second Monday before Thanksgiving 
through the Saturday following Thanksgiving, to include all open days from sunrise Monday 
on or nearest October 15 through the last day of February. 
15A NCAC 10D .0103 Hunting on game lands  
 

G13 Establish Texas Plantation Game Land in Tyrrell County as a Permit Only game land. 
 15A NCAC 10D .0103 Hunting on Game Lands 

 
 
 
Exhibit K is hereby incorporated into the official record of this meeting.  
 
 
WATER SAFETY RULEMAKING 
 
Adoption of Permanent Rulemaking – No Vessel Entry Swimming Area on Lake Glenville, 
Jackson County – Upon a motion by Joe Budd and second by Nat Harris, the Commission adopted 
15A NCAC 10F .0377, a no-vessel entry swimming area at the Pines Recreation Area Swim Beach on 
Lake Glenville in Jackson County, presented in Exhibit L. Upon review by the Rules Revision and 
codification in the NC Administrative Code, the earliest effective date of the rule would be May 1, 
2016. Exhibit L is hereby incorporated into the official record of this meeting.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CWRC Meeting 
Minutes 

13  

 
Adoption of Permanent Rule Amendment – No Wake Zone in Cedar Point, Carteret County - 
Upon a motion by Joe Budd and second by Tim Spear, the Commission adopted a permanent 
amendment to 15A NCAC 10F .0330, presented in Exhibit M, for a no wake zone at Palmetto 
Drive Canal, a tributary to the White Oak River in Cedar Point in Carteret County. Upon review by 
the Rules Review Commission and codification in the NC Administrative Code, the earliest 
effective date of the rule would be May 1, 2016.  Exhibit M is hereby incorporated into the official 
record of this meeting.  
 
Approval to Publish Notice of Text for Proposed Extension of No Wake Zone at Lakes End 
Cove on Nantahala Lake, Macon County – On a motion by Joe Budd and second by Tim Spear, 
the Commission approved staff recommendation, presented in Exhibit N-1, to publish a Notice of 
Text in the NC Register and hold one public hearing on a request by Macon County Board of 
Commissioners, for an extension of a no wake zone to encompass the entire Lakes End Cove on 
Nantahala Lake in Macon County. Exhibit N-1 is hereby incorporated into the official record of 
this meeting.  
 
Approval of Fiscal Note Review – Proposed No Wake Zone Rule Amendment to 15A NCAC 
10F .0366(a)(1) – On a motion by Neal Hanks and second by Joe Budd, the Commission approved 
the Fiscal Note Review by the Office of State Budget and Management, presented in Exhibit N-2, 
for a proposed amendment to 15A NCAC 10F .0366(a)(1) –Macon County, to extend an existing 
no wake zone to encompass the entire area of the Lakes End Cove on Nantahala Lake. If adopted, 
the WRC will purchase, place and maintain the markers for the signage at a cost of no more than 
$2000.00. Exhibit N-2 is hereby incorporated into the official record of this meeting.  
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN NCWRC AND US DEPARTMENT 
OF THE INTERIOR FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE ON MATTAMUSKEET 
NATIONAL WILDLIFE REFUGE – Exhibit O 
 
Prior to consideration of a draft MOU for co-management of certain programs at Mattamuskeet 
National Wildlife Refuge between NCWRC and USFWS, Commissioner John Stone recused 
himself from participation and action on a draft MOU pertaining to co-management of 
Mattamuskeet National Wildlife Refuge.  

 
Chairman John Clark recognized Derb Carter of the Southern Environmental Law Center.  Carter 
voiced concerns about the Wildlife Resources Commission managing fisheries on Lake 
Mattamuskeet.  

 
Director Gordon Myers stated that the MOU does not turn management of fisheries over to the 
WRC. Myers referred to a memorandum of December 6, 2014 signed by the WRC and USFWS, 
affirming a long-time commitment to water quality and vegetation hydrology at the refuge. Chief 
among shared objectives are the health and well-being of migratory waterfowl and wading birds 
that depend on the lake in their annual lifecycles. Myers noted that the MOU will add a system of 
accountability and define structure between the two agencies. All objectives are in complete 
alignment with the Comprehensive Conservation Plan for Mattamuskeet National Wildlife Refuge. 

 
 



CWRC Meeting 
Minutes 

14  

 
ADOPTION OF THE MOU 
 
With Commissioner John Stone recused, a motion was made by Wes Seegars and seconded by 
Brian White to adopt the Memorandum of Understanding between the USFWS and NCWRC. The 
motion carried.  The MOU, signed by Cynthia Dohner, Regional Director, SE Region, USFWS, 
Gordon Myers, Executive Director, NCWRC, and John Litton Clark, Chairman, NCWRC, is 
incorporated into the Minutes as Attachment 3.  
 
 
 
COMMENTS BY THE CHAIRMAN 
 
Chairman John Litton Clark congratulated Christian Waters on his promotion to Inland Fisheries 
Division Chief. Clark thanked Cindy Dohner and David Viker for their attendance and 
collaboration with the WRC on the Memorandum of Understanding.  
 
 
 
COMMENTS BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

 
Executive Director Gordon Myers thanked Cindy Dohner and David Viker for coming to the 
meetings and for their partnerships with the WRC. He congratulated Christian Waters for his 
promotion and congratulated Brian McRae for his promotion to Section Chief- Land and Water 
Access. Myers noted that Representative Jimmy Dixon and Dell Murphy, Chair of the Outdoor 
Heritage Council, met with WRC representatives last week to learn about the Commission’s 
outreach activities. The Session Law passed by the General Assembly last session provides an 
important role for the Wildlife Resources Commission to implement the Outdoor Heritage Trust 
Fund. Myers stated that the Executive Committee will meet to discuss implementation.  
 
 
COMMENTS BY CYNTHIA DOHNER, SOUTHEAST REGION DIRECTOR, US FISH 
AND WILDLIFE SERVICE 
 
Cynthia Dohner spoke about her high regard for the NCWRC.  She noted appreciation for the 
partnership and leadership shown by Director Gordon Myers in working on many projects with the 
US Fish and Wildlife Service. At a recent Awards Meeting, the USFWS SE Region presented an 
award to Gordon Myers, noting his support of landscape scale conservation to address ongoing 
research needs.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned by Chairman John Litton Clark at 
10:38 am.    

 
All exhibits are incorporated into the official record of this meeting by reference and are filed with 
the minutes. 

 



CWRC Meeting 
Minutes 

15  

 
 
 
 
                   

__________________________________________________________________________ 
John Litton Clark, Chairman      Date 
 
   
 
 
 
             

___________________________________________________________________________ 
Gordon Myers, Executive Director     Date 
 
 

            
            
                                   
   



December, 2014 December, 2015

Cash Balance July 1 17,507,785.09$      11,302,064.79$    

2014-2015 2015-2016

Appropriations
Authorized Budget Actual % of Budget Authorized Budget Actual

% of 

Budget

Appropriations 11,332,557.00$       5,752,442.00$          50.76% 10,199,121.00$        5,274,705.00$         51.72%

  Total 11,332,557.00$    5,752,442.00$        50.76% 10,199,121.00$     5,274,705.00$      51.72%

Receipts

License Receipts 19,018,349.00$       13,085,177.45$         68.80% 18,313,775.50$        13,594,216.85$       74.23%

Vessel Receipts 11,310,037.00        3,880,965.00            34.31% 11,720,816.32         4,895,940.00          41.77%

Federal Funds 26,115,651.00        13,765,540.19          52.71% 27,104,387.74         13,541,059.00         49.96%

Publications 345,432.00             486,808.90               140.93% 9,523,163.26           451,492.11             4.74%

Professional Services 8,567,065.00          5,212,140.07            60.84% 2,930,204.08           4,107,380.23          140.17%

Agency Reimbursements 3,934,902.00          2,845,042.91            72.30% 2,930,204.08           1,514,036.13          51.67%

Other Receipts 681,664.00             496,869.52               72.89% 732,551.02              828,613.71             113.11%

  Total 69,973,100.00$    39,772,544.04$      56.84% 73,255,102.00$     38,932,738.03$    53.15%

 

 

Expenditures 

Administration 7,965,285.00$        4,097,936.61$          51.45% 8,341,789.00$         4,415,686.61$         52.93%

Enforcement 22,408,435.00        10,311,205.57          46.01% 21,764,249.00         10,752,061.20         49.40%

Education 3,864,594.00          1,697,574.99            43.93% 4,926,549.00           2,500,427.88          50.75%

Inland Fisheries 10,197,663.00        4,538,972.07            44.51% 9,253,631.00           3,982,642.88          43.04%

Wildlife Management 10,581,455.00        3,821,669.97            36.12% 8,943,911.00           3,515,287.31          39.30%

Engineering Services 22,808,305.00        14,906,821.17          65.36% 22,604,055.00         12,240,346.08         54.15%

Habitat Conservation -                         -                           994,381.00              463,754.73             46.64%

W/Life Fund Receipts 9,752,135.00          4,388,872.50            45.00% 9,060,699.00           3,800,024.10          41.94%

                        TOTAL  Total 87,577,872.00$    43,763,052.88$      49.97% 85,889,264.00$     41,670,230.79$    48.52%

Cash Balance December 31 19,269,718.25$      13,839,277.03$    

NORTH CAROLINA WILDLIFE RESOURCES COMMISSION  

Summary and Analysis of Agency Operating Cash Balance - Code 14350, 24350, 24351 and 24352

Exhibit B
April 21, 2016



December, 2014 December, 2015

Balance Dec 1 110,313,759.73$        116,449,397.52$       

    Plus:  Revenues from Sales 444,434.00                548,191.00               

              Return on Investment 591,998.99                366,656.14               

111,350,192.72          117,364,244.66         

    Less:  Transfers Out -                           -                           

Balance Dec 31 111,350,192.72$     117,364,244.66$    

Market Value 113,674,292.81$     113,603,367.88$    

ADULT Licenses 20,355,636.90$             -$                          -$                         -$                       

INFANT Licenses -                               10,397,117.22           -                           -                         

YOUTH Licenses -                               868,763.61                -                           -                         

Magazine Subscriptions 378,733.83                   -                           -                           -                         

Contributions - General 1,669,419.32                -                           -                           -                         

Contributions - Diversity 1,040.32                       -                           -                           -                         

TOTAL 22,404,830.37$          11,265,880.83$       -$                         -$                       

  2015-16 Budgeted Obligated 2015-16 Transferred To Date

  Allocation of Endowment Interest - Sportsman Fund 5,095,858.00             To Sportsman Fund -                         

  Allocation of Endowment Interest - Magazine Fund 271,965.00                To Magazine Fund -                         

 To Capital Projects -                         

5,367,823.00$         -$                       

NORTH CAROLINA WILDLIFE RESOURCES COMMISSION

ENDOWMENT FUND YEAR-TO-DATE

Endowment Fund Interest

Sources of 

Interest 

Available

Expendable Non Expendable
Transferred to 

Operations

Transferred to 

Capital Projects

Page 12 of 13

































































 

EXHIBIT C-3 
April 21, 2016 

 
2016-17 Migratory Game Bird Gun Season Frameworks and WMD Staff Recommendations 
 
   Staff Recommendations 
Species Frameworks  Staff Recommended Season Daily Bag 
Mourning Dove & 
White-winged dove 

Outside Dates:  September 1 – January 15,  
90 days with 3 splits 
daily bag of 15 singly or in the aggregate 

 September 3 – October 8, 
November 21 – January 14 

15 

     
King & Clapper 
Rails 

Outside Dates:  September 1 – last Sunday in 
January (January 29) 
70 days with 2 splits 
daily bag of 15 singly or in the aggregate 

 September 1 – October 1, 
October 14 – November 21  
 

15 

     
Sora & Virginia 
Rails 

Outside Dates:  September 1 – last Sunday in 
January (January 29) 
70 days with 2 splits 
daily bag of 25 singly or in the aggregate 

 September 1 – October 1, 
October 14 – November 21 
 

25 

     
Gallinule & 
Moorhens 

Outside Dates:  September 1 – last Sunday in 
January (January 29) 
70 days with 2 splits 
daily bag of 15 singly or in the aggregate 

 September 1 – October 1, 
October 14 – November 21  
 

15 

     
Woodcock Outside Dates:  October 1 – January 31 

45 days with 2 splits, daily bag of 3 
 December 15 – January 28 3 

     
Common Snipe Outside Dates:  September 1 – February 28 

107 days with 2 splits 
daily bag of 8 

 November 14 – February 28  8 



 

 
   Staff Recommendations 
Species Frameworks  Staff Recommended Season Daily Bag 
     
Canada Goose 
(September season) 

Outside Dates:  September 1 – 30 (statewide), 
30 days 
daily bag of 15 
Special methods:  During the September 
Canada goose season only, the following 
expanded hunting methods area allowed:   

1. Extended shooting hours to ½ hour 
after sunset. 

2. unplugged guns 
3. electronic calls 

Note:  The special methods cannot occur 
during any other open waterfowl season, e.g., 
teal season. 

 September 1 – 30 (statewide) 
 
1.  extend shooting hours to ½ 
hour after sunset 
2.  allow use of unplugged guns 
3.  allow use of electronic calls 
 
These expanded methods are 
only to be allowed west of U.S. 
17. 

15 

September Teal Outside Dates:  September 1 – 30, 16 
consecutive days, daily bag of 6, east of U.S. 
17 only 

 September 10 – September 28 
(East of U.S. 17 only) (different 
from earlier proposal) 

6 

General Duck 
Season 

Outside Dates:  September 24 – January 29, 
60 days with 3 splits, daily bag of 6  
 
Includes a total of 6 ducks with no more than 4 scoters, 
4 eiders, 4 long-tailed ducks, 4 mallards with no more 
than 2 hen mallards, 3 wood ducks, 2 scaup, 2 
redheads, 2 pintails, 2 canvasbacks, 1 black duck, 1 
mottled duck, and 1 fulvous whistling duck.  The 
season on harlequin ducks is closed. 

 October 5 – October 8, 
November 12 – December 3, 
December 17 – January 28 

Includes a total of 6 
ducks with no more 
than 4 scoters, 4 
eiders, 4 long-tailed 
ducks, 4 mallards 
with no more than 2 
hen mallards, 3 wood 
ducks, 2 scaup, 2 
redheads, 2 pintails, 2 
canvasbacks, 1 black 
or mottled duck 
(season closed until 
November 19), and 1 
fulvous whistling 
duck.  The season on 
harlequin ducks is 
closed.

 



 

 
   Staff Recommendations 
Species Frameworks  Staff Recommended Season Daily Bag 
Mergansers Dates:  same as general duck season,  

daily bag of 5 mergansers with no more than 
2 hooded mergansers 

 Same as general duck season 5 mergansers with 
no more than 2 
hooded 
mergansers 

Coots Dates:  same as general duck season,  
daily bag of 15 coots 

 Same as general duck season 15 coots 

Special Sea Duck 
Season (in the 
special sea duck 
area) 

Outside Dates:  September 15 – January 31 
60 consecutive days or season must coincide 
with the general duck season. 
daily bag of 5 sea ducks with no more than 4 
scoters, 4 eiders and 4 long-tailed ducks  
 

 November 21 – January 28 5 sea ducks with 
no more than 4 
scoters, 4 eiders 
and 4 long-tailed 
ducks 

Dark Geese 
(Resident Population 
Zone) – includes 
Canada Geese and 
White-fronted geese 

Outside Dates:  October 1 – March 10 
80 days with 3 splits, daily bag of 5 Canada 
geese or White-fronted geese singly or in the 
aggregate  
 

 October 5 – October 15, 
November 12 – December 3, 
December 17 – February 11 

5 

Dark Geese (SJBP 
Zone) – includes 
Canada Geese and 
White-fronted geese 

Outside Dates:  October 1 – December 31 
70 days with 2 splits, daily bag of 5 Canada 
geese or White-fronted geese singly or in the 
aggregate  
 

 October 5 – November 4, 
November 12 – December 31 

5 

Dark Geese 
(Northeast Zone) – 
includes Canada 
Geese and White-
fronted geese 

Outside Dates:  December 24 – January 31 
14 days with 2 splits, daily bag of 1 Canada 
goose or White-fronted goose 
 

 January 13 – January 28 1 with a valid 
permit (unlimited 
point of sale 
permits available) 

Brant Outside Dates:  September 24 – January 31 
60 days with a daily bag of 2; 2 splits allowed 
(USFWS frameworks document omitted 
mention of 2 splits by mistake) 
 

 December 17 – January 28 (37 
days total, different from earlier 
proposal)  

1 



 

 
   Staff Recommendations 
Species Frameworks  Staff Recommended Season Daily Bag 
Light Geese 
(includes snow, blue 
and Ross’ geese) – 
regular season 

Outside Dates:  October 1 – March 10 
107 days with 3 splits, daily bag of 25 (no 
possession limit)  
 

 October 11 – February 11 25 (no possession 
limit) 

Light Geese 
(includes snow, blue 
and Ross’ geese) – 
Conservation Order 
season 

Outside Dates:  Must occur when no other 
waterfowl season is open, no daily bag, no 
possession limit 
 electronic calls allowed 
 unplugged guns allowed 
 extended shooting hours to ½ hour past 

sunset allowed 

 February 13 – March 31  no daily bag limit 
 no possession limit 
 electronic calls 

allowed 
 unplugged guns 

allowed 
 allow shooting to 

extend to ½ hour 
past sunset 

Tundra Swan Outside Dates:  October 1 – January 31 
90 days, no splits allowed, 1 per season with 
valid permit (5,000 permits available)  
 

 November 12 – January 31 1 per season with 
valid permit 

Youth Waterfowl 
Day(s) 

 2 youth days allowed 
 The day(s) can occur up to 14 days before 

or after any regular duck season or in the 
closed portion between season segments. 

 The day must occur on any non-school 
day.  In North Carolina, this includes 
Saturdays and any statewide holidays. 

 States may use their established definition 
of age for youth hunters.  However, youth 
hunters may not be over the age of 17. 

 February 4 & February 11 Includes ducks, 
geese, brant, 
mergansers, coots 
and tundra swans.  
Youth must have a 
valid permit if 
hunting tundra 
swans and dark 
geese (Northeast 
Hunt Zone) 

 
- Federal guidelines allow for shooting hours for all migratory game birds to be from ½ hour before sunrise to 

sunset.  
- Possession limit is three times the daily bag for all species.   



EXHIBIT C-4 
April 21, 2016 

 
Extended Falconry Season Highlights & WMD Staff 

Recommendations for 2016-17 Extended Falconry Seasons for 
Migratory Game Bird Species 

 
 
General Restrictions/Guidelines 
 
 Seasons must fall between September 1 and March 10 
 Total days available for falconry cannot exceed 107 (for each species) and includes regular, 

i.e., gun seasons, experimental seasons and extended falconry seasons 
 The falconry daily bag limit is 3 permitted migratory game birds, singly or in the aggregate  

The regular, i.e., gun season bag limits for individual species do not apply 
 Each extended season may be divided into a maximum of 3 segments 
 The falconry bag limit is not in addition to the gun bag limit 
 
 
WMD Staff Recommendations 

 
If the Commission chooses staff recommended “gun” seasons as presented, we recommend the 
following extended falconry seasons. 
 
Mourning dove/White-winged dove October 15 – October 31
Rails, Gallinule and Moorhens December 3 – January 7
Woodcock November 5 – December 3 and February 1 – 

February 28
Ducks October 25 – November 5 and January 31 – 

February 18 
 
 





Proposal Proposed Text Position Count Comment Types

H1
Change the bear season in Brunswick and Columbus counties to open on the second 
Monday in November and close on January 1.

104 :Agree     
48 :Disagree     

64 :Online
88 :Comment Card
0 :Letter/Email

H2 Allow the take of bears using unprocessed foods during the entire open bear season.
229 :Agree     
144 :Disagree     

262 :Online
96 :Comment Card
15 :Letter/Email

Summary of Public Comments on Temporary Bear Rules

EXHIBIT E-1
April 21, 2016

1 of 1



 Summary of Public Comments on Temporary Bear Rules 
by District

Proposal District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5 District 6 District 7 District 8 District 9 Out of State
Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count:
1 :Agree 24 :Agree 5 :Agree 38 :Agree 5 :Agree 2 :Agree 2 :Agree 15 :Agree 12 :Agree 0 :Agree
0 :Disagree 4 :Disagree 1 :Disagree 9 :Disagree 0 :Disagree 3 :Disagree 1 :Disagree 22 :Disagree 8 :Disagree 0 :Disagree

Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types:
0 :Comment Card 19 :Comment Card 0 :Comment Card 25 :Comment Card 0 :Comment Card 0 :Comment Card 0 :Comment Card 32 :Comment Card 12 :Comment Card 0 :Comment Card
0 :Letter/Email 0 :Letter/Email 0 :Letter/Email 0 :Letter/Email 0 :Letter/Email 0 :Letter/Email 0 :Letter/Email 0 :Letter/Email 0 :Letter/Email 0 :Letter/Email
1 :Online 9 :Online 6 :Online 22 :Online 5 :Online 5 :Online 3 :Online 5 :Online 8 :Online 0 :Online
Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count: Position Count:
19 :Agree 58 :Agree 20 :Agree 34 :Agree 7 :Agree 8 :Agree 15 :Agree 23 :Agree 36 :Agree 9 :Agree
3 :Disagree 20 :Disagree 5 :Disagree 23 :Disagree 2 :Disagree 10 :Disagree 6 :Disagree 40 :Disagree 33 :Disagree 2 :Disagree

Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types: Comment Types:
0 :Comment Card 20 :Comment Card 0 :Comment Card 24 :Comment Card 0 :Comment Card 0 :Comment Card 0 :Comment Card 36 :Comment Card 16 :Comment Card 0 :Comment Card
0 :Letter/Email 4 :Letter/Email 2 :Letter/Email 0 :Letter/Email 0 :Letter/Email 4 :Letter/Email 0 :Letter/Email 2 :Letter/Email 2 :Letter/Email 1 :Letter/Email
22 :Online 54 :Online 23 :Online 33 :Online 9 :Online 14 :Online 21 :Online 25 :Online 51 :Online 10 :Online

H1

H2

Page 1 of 1



 

 
 

Letter and Petitions Received During the Public Comment Period for the  
Temporary Bear Rules 

Wildlife Management Division 
 

In addition to the individual comments tallied, the Commission received the following letters 
representing an organization*: 
 

1) Opposed to expanding the use of unprocessed foods (H2) 
NC Wildlife Federation, signed by Tim Gestwicki, CEO 
 

2) Supports changing the bear season in Brunswick and Columbus counties to open on the second 
Monday in November and close on January 1 (H1) and supports expanding the use of 
unprocessed foods (H2) 
NC Bowhunters Association, signed by Jamie Brady, President 
 

In addition to the individual comments tallied, the Commission received the following petition: 
 

1) One year’s experience of shooting black bears over bait for the first six days of the season is no 
basis or justification to extend this unproven technique to the entire season in an attempt to 
increase the kill. The harvest appears to have decreased in 2014 and the 2015 harvest is not 
reported. Hardly a strong basis to expand this activity that is not allowed on gamelands and that 
is controversial among many groups of hunters and non-hunters alike. Use of bait to lure black 
bears into shooting areas could easily shift the harvest to female and young bears. More bait on 
the ground certainly increases the likelihood of more unwanted conflicts and human 
interactions with black bears. No urgency has been given to justify adoption of this rule change 
in the middle of the regular regulations cycle. Why was this change not considered during the 
regular cycle for 2015-16 hunting regulations? Pressing forward at this time with the baiting 
change precludes consideration of several legitimate proposals to increase the black bear 
harvest that are more fair, simple, and effective. Namely, an increase in the bag limit from one 
to two with one of the kills allowed in a primitive weapons season would work better from all 
angles. Put this proposal in the next cycle for hunting regulation changes so that alternatives 
can be evaluated and impacts can be assessed. 
54 signatures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Complete letters available upon request. 







EXHIBIT F 
April 21, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Tommy Hughes 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  April 21, 2016 
 
Tract Name:  Bakers Lake 
 
Acreage:  1,155 
 
PIN:  037800131553 
 
County:  Bladen 
 
Estimated Value:  $ 2,200,000.00 (Asking Price) 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Clemuel Johnson 
 

Phone:  (H) 910-862-3260 (W) 910-862-3943 (C) 910-862-1899 
 
Address:  P.O. Box 487, Elizabethtown, NC 28337 
             
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF    

☒ OTHER (explain):  Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant, WRC (Wildlife 
Endowment Fund) 

 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  This property contains Bakers Lake 
Carolina Bay and derives its name from the small natural lake within the bay itself.  This natural 
bay lake is a rare ecological and habitat feature and is approximately 75 acres in size.  Bakers 
Lake Carolina Bay is approximately 686 acres and has been identified as a Significant Natural 
Heritage Area by the N.C. Natural Heritage Program for its special biodiversity significance.  It 
is located in northwestern Bladen County between Suggs Mill Pond Game Land and the Cape 
Fear River.  It lies at the edge of the Bladen Lakes Macrosite, which extends from southern 
Cumberland County through eastern Bladen County into southwestern Pender County.  This bay 
complex is headwaters for Phillips Creek, which flows southward from the lake to the Cape Fear 
River. 
 



Within this site, patches of the rare Peatland Atlantic White Cedar Forest community occur along 
the east side of the bay complex, and larger areas may be present elsewhere within the complex.  
There is a moderately dense canopy of Atlantic white cedar over an open subcanopy of swamp 
tupelo and loblolly bay.  Fetterbush, southern highbush blueberry, swamp red bay, and 
blaspheme-vine are prominent in the moderately dense shrub layer.  Pond Pine Woodland occurs 
in a mosaic with the Peatland Atlantic White Cedar Forest community along the east side, and 
may be more extensive elsewhere at the site.  Pond pine forms a moderate canopy over a sparse 
subcanopy of loblolly bay and swamp red maple.  The dense shrub layer is dominated by 
fetterbush, blue huckleberry, titi, and blaspheme-vine (LeBlond and Grant 2005). 
 
Other acreage within the site consists of 62 acres Dry Coniferous Woodlands that historically 
supported the Dry Longleaf Pine habitat community.  Two hundred acres of Mixed Hardwoods 
and Pine habitat are also found on the property, along with 11 acres of Floodplain Forest. 
 
The 75 acre lake provides habitat for both resident and wintering waterfowl.  Food availability is 
probably limited, but it has value for loafing, roosting, and as a stopover area for wintering 
waterfowl.  Additionally, the tract supports NCWRC Wildlife Action Plan priority habitats and 
species and will provide valuable habitat for reptiles, amphibians, neotropical migrants, white-
tailed deer, wild turkey, black bear, small game, and furbearers.  See the attached tables with 
habitats and their priority wildlife species. 
 
Based upon data found in the NC Conservation Planning Tool, the Bakers Lake Tract’s 
biodiversity index has an estimated averaged score of 7 out of 10 (1- low-10 high values).  
Approximately 850 acres (76%) of the tract scored an 8 and the remaining acreage had scores 
ranging from 2 to 6.  The Biodiversity/Wildlife Habitat Index prioritizes aquatic and terrestrial 
habitat, landscape function, and connectivity.  
 
Additional Comments:  Five-year stewardship estimates total approximately $179,000 as 
outlined in the attached table.  No short-term revenue is anticipated. 
 
References 

 
LeBlond, R. J. and Grant G. S. 2005.  Natural Area Inventory of Bladen County, North Carolina. 
NC Department of Environmental and Natural Resources, NC Natural Heritage Program. 
Raleigh, NC. 
 
Program Potential:    ☒ Game Land  ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area  

    ☐ Fishing Access Area         ☐ None 
 

Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
  

22 of 30 

 



 
WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Focal Area) Baker’s Lake (Bladen County)  
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

1 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

1 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

Yes 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 22 
     

 



Bakers Lake Tract – Bladen County 

 

5- Year Estimated Stewardship Costs 

 

Description Quantity Unit Unit/Cost Total  

Boundary Establishment – yr 1 11.3 Mile $        550.00 $ 6,215.00.00  

Boundary Maintenance – yr 4 11.3 Mile $        135.00 $      1,525.50  

Upgrade Road to Lake – yr 1 0.87 Mile $150,000.00 $  130,500.00  

Maintain Road to Lake – yr 2-5 0.87 Mile $    2,500.00 $      8,700.00  

Maintain Trail – yrs 1-5 1.75 Mile $     2,500.00 $    21,875.00  

Establish Gate – yr 1 2 Each $        750.00 $      1,500.00  

Maintain Gate – yr 2-5 2 Each $        100.00 $          200.00  

Prescribed Burning – yr 1 and 4 262 Acre $          30.00 $      7,860.00  

Maintain Firebreak – yr 4 1.0 Mile $        525.00 $          525.00  

      

   Total $  178,900.50  

      

5-Year Anticipated Revenue      

*No timber would be cut in the next 5 
years. 

     

      

   Total $    0.00  

      
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 



!(20

!(87

!(53

!(87

RiverRd

Big Island Rd

PineAcres Rd

Bill Hall Rd

Tar Heel Ferry Rd

DrCogdell Rd

Live Oak Methodist Church Rd

Burney Rd

_̂
§̈¦95

£¤74

£¤701
£¤421

£¤701

Baker's Lake Tract
Bladen County

1,155 Acres

/March 25, 2016 0 1 20.5 Miles

Bladen
County

Suggs Mill Pond GL

Baker's Lake Tract

Bladen County

Cumberland County

Cape Fear River



State R
oad 1318

State R
oad 1320

Evergreen Farm Rd

Pine Acres Rd

Jessie Dr

John T Council Cem
etery Ln

Sq
ui

re
s 

Fa
rm

 R
d

Privateer Farm Rd

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂
§̈¦95

£¤74

£¤701
£¤421

£¤701

Baker's Lake Tract
Bladen County

1,155 Acres

/March 25, 2016 0 0.5 10.25 Miles

Bladen
County

Baker's Lake Tract



 

 

EXHIBIT G-1 
April 21, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  April 21, 2016  

 

Tract:   Blue Ridge Conservancy 2016 Tracts; Ashe County, 350.7 Acres 
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
Accept donation of the property from the Blue Ridge Conservancy  
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No  ☒ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 

Date of Appraisal:  NA 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No ☒ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
  
Additional Comments:  NA 

 $29,731 

 $0 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET 

Five Year Stewardship Costs and Revenue Projections  

(Five Years Post Acquisition) 
      

STEWARDSHIP 

        

  Estimated Stewardship Expenditures  

Tract Name Activity Quantity Unit  Unit Cost   Total Cost  

Blue Ridge 
Conservancy 
Tracts - 2016 

Contract survey to 
locate undefined 
property boundary 13,585 ft. $1.25 

                          
$16,981    

      

 
Spot Gravel Access 
Road 1.0  mi. $5,000 $5,000 

      

 

Spot mow annually 
to maintain existing 
early successional 
habitat NA NA NA $2,000 

      

 
Construct public 
parking area 1 ea. $5,000 $5,000 

      

  

Install gates to 
control vehicular 
access 1 ea. $750 $750 

  Total       $29,731.00 

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

       

      

      

      

REVENUE 

        

  Estimated Revenue Projections  

Tract Name Source Quantity Unit  Unit Revenue   Total Revenue  

           $                           -    

        

  Total        $                           -    

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

      

      

      
 



 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Kip Hollifield 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  April 21, 2016 
 
Game Land:  Pond Mountain Game Land 
 
Tract Name:  Blue Ridge Conservancy 2016 Tracts 
 
Parcel ID#:   Braun Tract (Phase II):  17040-001 
  Blue Ridge Conservancy Tract:  17040-013 
 
Acreage:   Braun Tract (Phase II):    340.7 
  Blue Ridge Conservancy Tract:   10.0 
  TOTAL   350.7 
 
County:  Ashe 
 
Estimated Value: NA – tracts offered as donation 
   Braun Tract (Phase II):  current value $1,952,000 
   Blue Ridge Conservancy Tract:  current value $148,500 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Blue Ridge Conservancy, c/o Eric Hiegl 
 

Phone:  828-264-2511 
 

Email: eric@blueridgeconservancy.org 
 
Address:  P.O. Box 568 

 Boone,  NC 28607 
 
Status:  ☒ High Interest  ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest  ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ NHTF ☐ CWMTF    

☒ OTHER (explain):  NC - Blue Ridge Conservancy wishes to donate both subject 
tracts to WRC 
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  These tracts are part of the Pond Mountain 
State Natural Heritage Area and lie at elevations ranging from 3,800-4,300 feet.  These tracts are “lynch 
pin” tracts, which once acquired by WRC, will connect the current Pond Mountain Game Land to the 
Loflin Tract and the Cherokee National Forest in Tennessee.  The tracts offer the unique opportunity to 
manage for wildlife species and plants requiring both high elevation meadow habitats and northern 
hardwood forests.  The majority (~80%) of the tracts contain northern hardwood forest types with the 
forest overstory mainly composed of sugar maple, beech, yellow birch, and northern red oak at the higher 
elevations with other species mixing in at the lower elevations.  The remainder of the tract (~20%) is high 
elevation meadow habitat.  These habitats will provide excellent opportunities to manage for the 
following NCWAP species:  alder flycatcher, American woodcock, Canada warbler, chestnut-sided  



 

 

 
 
 
warbler, chimney swift, Eastern wood pee-wee, field sparrow, hairy woodpecker, hermit thrush, rose-
breasted grosbeak, vesper sparrow, yellow-shafted flicker, and Appalachian cottontail.  The extensive 
streams and riparian areas on the tracts offer opportunity to manage for a host of NCWAP salamanders 
including:  Weller’s, pigmy, ravine, and slimy. The tracts also contain many popular game animals such 
as white-tailed deer, black bear, wild turkey, cottontail rabbit, ruffed grouse, and raccoon.  The property 
has high value for hunting, angling, other dispersed recreational activities, forestry, and scientific and 
educational purposes. The location and current condition of this tract combine to create an ideal property 
for inclusion in the Game Lands Program. 
 
 

Additional Comments:  Approximately 60% of the funding used by Blue Ridge Conservancy to 
purchase the tracts was provided by a private donor.  The remainder of the funding is represented by a 
grant from the Clean Water Management Trust Fund.  A stipulation of the private donation is that a 
conservation easement held by Blue Ridge Conservancy be placed on the property.  Blue Ridge 
Conservancy advises that WRC will have input on the language/content of the conservation easement. 
 
Program Potential:  ☒ Game Land ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area ☐ Fishing Access Area 

           ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal: state match rates):  Pittman- 
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
  
 

 

30 of 30 
 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Pond Mtn GL)  Blue Ridge Conservancy 2016 Tracts (Ashe County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 30 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Plethodon richmondi Ravine Salamander  

Plethodon ventralis Southern Zigzag Salamander SC

Plethodon wehrlei Wehrle's Salamander T

Plethodon welleri Weller's Salamander SC

Desmognathus wrighti Pygmy Salamander SR

Eurycea longicauda Longtail Salamander SC

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

Necturus maculosus Mudpuppy SC

Cryptobranchus alleganiensis Hellbender SC

Hyla versicolor Gray Treefrog SR

Pseudacris brachyphona Mountain Chorus Frog SC

BIRDS

Lophodytes cucullatus Hooded Merganser  

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Falco peregrinus Peregrine Falcon E

Coccyzus erythropthalmus Black-billed Cuckoo SR

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Asio otus Long-eared Owl  

Sphyrapicus varius Yellow-bellied Sapsucker  

Empidonax alnorum Alder Flycatcher SR

Empidonax minimus Least Flycatcher  

Vireo gilvus Warbling Vireo SR

Corvus corax Common Raven  

Riparia riparia Bank Swallow SR

Sitta canadensis Red-breasted Nuthatch  

Certhia americana Brown Creeper SC

Troglodytes troglodytes Winter Wren  

Regulus satrapa Golden-crowned Kinglet  

Vermivora pinus Blue-winged Warbler SR

Vermivora chrysoptera Golden-winged Warbler SC

Dendroica magnolia Magnolia Warbler SR

Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Pooecetes gramineus Vesper Sparrow SC

Passerculus sandwichensis Savannah Sparrow SR

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole  

MAMMALS

Sorex dispar Long-tailed Shrew SC

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew  

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat  

Myotis grisescens Gray Myotis LE E

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis  

Myotis leibii Eastern Small-footed Myotis SC

Sylvilagus obscurus Appalachian Cottontail SR-G

Sciurus niger Eastern Fox Squirrel SR-G

Neotoma magister Allegheny Woodrat SC

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

Mustela nivalis Least Weasel SR-G

Spilogale putorius Eastern Spotted Skunk  

REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Apalone spinifera spinifera Eastern Spiny Softshell SC

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake  

Blue Ridge Conservancy 2016 Tracts (Ashe County) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y
!y

!y

!y
!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y
!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y !y
!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

£¤221

£¤21

£¤421

BRC 2016 Tracts
Ashe County
350.7 Acres

/March 27, 2016
0 1 20.5 Miles

Ashe
County

Existing GLs 

BRC 2016 Tracts 

Loflin Tract (Closed Jan. 2016)

Cherokee NF - Tennessee

Future GL (Donation)

_̂

Loflin - Tenn. Portion



Dixon Creek

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y
!y

!y

!y
!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y
!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y !y
!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

£¤221

£¤21

£¤421

BRC 2016 Tracts
Ashe County
350.7 Acres

/March 27, 2016
0 1,000 2,000500 Feet

Ashe
County

Existing GLs 

BRC 2016 Tracts 

Loflin Tract (Closed Jan. 2016)

Future GL (Donation)

_̂



 

 

EXHIBIT G-2 
April 21, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  April 21, 2016  

 

Tract:   Bristol Creek Tracts; Burke County, 14.2 Acres 
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
Accept donation of the property from the landowner  
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No  ☒ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 

Date of Appraisal:  NA 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No ☒ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
State Wildlife Grant (65% federal: 35% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
  
Additional Comments:  NA 

 200 

 0 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET 

Five Year Stewardship Costs and Revenue Projections  

(Five Years Post Acquisition) 
      

STEWARDSHIP 

        

  Estimated Stewardship Expenditures  

Tract Name Activity Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost 

      
Bristol Creek 
Tracts 

 Boundary 
Establishment  1 mi. $200 $ 200 

      

  Total       $ 200.00 

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

       

      

      

      

      

REVENUE 

        

  Estimated Revenue Projections  

Tract Name Source Quantity Unit  Unit Revenue   Total Revenue  

           
Bristol Creek 
Tracts NA NA NA NA  $                           -    

      

  Total        $                           -    

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

      

      

      
 
 
 



  
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:   Kendrick Weeks, kendrick.weeks@ncwildlife.org, (919) 609-7605 
   Gabrielle Graeter, gabrielle.graeter@ncwildlife.org, (828) 273-9097 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:   April 21, 2016  
   
Tract Name:  Bristol Creek Tracts 
 
Acreage:  14.2   
 
PIN:  2716118416 and 2716224176 
 
County:  Burke 
 
Estimated Value:     NA – offered as a donation ($31,238 tax value) 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  

Owner:  Smith, R.M. Heirs, c/o James P. Smith 
  1432 Kershaw Drive, Raleigh, NC 27609 

 

Representative:  Foothills Conservancy, c/o Tom Kenney 
  P.O. Box 3023, Morganton, NC 28680 

     Phone: (828) 437-9930 
     Email: tkenney@foothillsconservancy.org 
 

Status:  ☒ High Interest  ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest  ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF    

☒ OTHER (explain):  NA – offered as a donation. 
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  There is likely a population of bog turtles 
present and NCWRC owns adjacent parcels encompassing portions of the floodplain of Bristol Creek on 
the other (Southeast) side of NC 18/US 64. In addition, an upland parcel with a perennial stream that 
feeds the bog is being included which expands management potential.     
 
Additional Comments:  Acquisition will provide permanent protection of an additional portion of bog 
turtle habitat. Concerns are mainly associated with future watershed land use, especially the watershed 
associated with the unnamed tributary to Bristol Creek. Management of the bog will be much easier once 
owned by NCWRC. The upland parcel provides buffer and increases management control.    
 
Five-year stewardship estimates are limited to marking and maintaining approx. 1 mile of property 
boundary at a total cost of approx. $200.   
 
No short-term revenue is anticipated.    
 
 

mailto:kendrick.weeks@ncwildlife.org
mailto:gabrielle.graeter@ncwildlife.org
mailto:tkenney@foothillsconservancy.org


 

 

 

 

Program Potential:  ☐ Game Land ☒ Wildlife Conservation Area ☐ Fishing Access Area 

           ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal: state match rates):   
State wildlife Grant (65% federal: 35% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
 

 

20 of 30 



 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name    Bristol Creek Wetland – Smith Parcels (Burke County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

3 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

3 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  3 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

2 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

4 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

Yes (WCA) 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 20 of 30 
     
     

 



SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED
MUSSELS

NONGAME FISH

AMPHIBIANS

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC
Ambystoma maculatum Spotted Salamander
Ambystoma talpoideum Mole Salamander SC
Eurycea guttolineata Three-lined Salamander
BIRDS

Empidonax traillii Willow Flycatcher
Coccyzus americana Yellow-billed Cuckoo
Nyctanassa violacea Yellow-crowned Night-heron 
MAMMALS

Synaptomys cooperi Southern Bog Lemming
Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse
Microtus pennsylvanicus Meadow Vole
Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat
REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle T
Lampropeltis getula Eastern Kingsnake
Terapene carolina Eastern Box Turtle

 

 

Bristol Creek Smith Tract (Burke County) - Wildlife Action Plan Priority Species



Bristol C
reek

BURKE

£¤64
Hartland

Pax Hill

Hillock

Hillhaven

Ra
de

r

Hillsboro

Hemlock

Hidden Pines

CedarBristol

PutnamJohn Coffey

Hillhaven

Hemlock

N
Bristol Creek Wetland

Smith Parcels
Approx. 14 acres

0 1,000 2,000500 Feet
Legend

Johns River Game Land

Rivers and Streams

Smith Parcel 2 (~5 acres)

Smith Parcel 1 (~9 acres)

US Highways

NC Roads

Local Roads

Map Created by: Kendrick Weeks 3/22/2016



 

 

EXHIBIT G-3 
April 21, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  March 5, 2015  

 

Tract:  Deviney 2014 Tract; Rutherford County, 28.5 Acres  
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
 
Pitman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant  $ 70,500 
 
Wildlife Resources Commission    $ 29,500 
  
Total Cost:      $ 100,000 ($ 3,509/Acre) 
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No  ☐ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 
Requested by: Appraiser Effective Date Appraised Value 

 
WRC 

 
Mike Moore  

 
5/22/15 

 
$ 94,000 ($ 3,298/Acre) 

 
Date of Appraisal:  See above. 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No ☐ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
 

  

Additional Comments:  Purchase price exceeds appraised value by $6,000 (approx. 6.4%).  However, 
exceeding appraised value is justified in this case to eliminate the inholding, prevent potential future 
conflicts, and provide contiguous state ownership within this section of game land.   
 

$ 200 

NA 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET 

Five Year Stewardship Costs and Revenue Projections  

(Five Years Post Acquisition) 

      STEWARDSHIP 

  
    

  

  Estimated Stewardship Expenditures  

Tract Name Activity Quantity Unit  Unit Cost   Total Cost  

Deviney 2014 
Tract 

  
Remove existing GL 
signs and paint  0.5 mi. $200                           $100    

 

 
Establish new GL 
signs 0.5 mi. $200 $100 

       

  Total       $200 

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

  
      
     

      

      

      REVENUE 

  
    

  

  Estimated Revenue Projections  

Tract Name Source Quantity Unit  Unit Revenue   Total Revenue  

  
Deviney 2014 
Tract NA NA NA NA  $                           -    

  
    

  

  Total        $                           -    

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

      

      

      + 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Gordon Warburton/Kip Hollifield 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  March 5, 2015 
 
Tract Name:  Deviney 2014 Tract (PIN 1608559) 
 
Acreage:  28.5 
 
County:  Rutherford 
 
Estimated Value:  $ 150,000 (asking price - appraised value likely significantly lower) 
        Landowner advised that he will accept a “reasonable offer” and that the asking  
        price is not firm. 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Jim Deviney 
 

Phone:  (704) 538-9071 
 
Address:  838 Moriah School Road, Casar, NC 28020 
 
Status:  ☒ High Interest  ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest  ☐ No Interest 
 

Grant Potential:  ☐ NHTF ☒ CWMTF    

☒ OTHER (explain):  Pittman Robertson Federal Funding 
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  
 
This acquisition would be a significant part of the total management project being carried out in the South 
Mountains area.  Acquisition is particularly important since it would remove an inholding from South 
Mountains Game Land (SMGL).  The current owner’s access crosses SMGL for approximately 0.75 mi.  
The tract is predominately Appalachian oak forest, with some embedded Appalachian cove forest also 
present.  Some timber has been removed in the past 5-10 years.  Management objectives will include 
restoring and maintaining the oak forest and cove forest priority wildlife habitats that are located on the 
tract.  Common wildlife species found on the tract includes wild turkey, black bear, white-tailed deer and 
gray squirrel.  Priority nongame species likely found on the tract as either permanent residents or transient 
inhabitants include Cooper’s hawk, Sharp-shinned hawk, northern flicker,  prairie warbler, yellow billed 
cuckoo, Eastern wood-pewee, hooded warbler, timber rattlesnake, eastern box turtle, eastern mole, Smoky 
shrew, pygmy shrew, eastern hog nosed snake, mole kingsnake, and Eastern kingsnake. 
 
This tract is embedded within the Rollins/South Mountains State Natural Area.  Both the R and C rating 
for this natural area are exceptional.  The R rating (Element Representational Rating) is designed to 
indicate a SNHA’s potential to contribute to a collection of the best sites for each tracked element  



 

 

 
 
 
 
within the state.  The C rating (Element Collective Rating) evaluates the conservation value of each 
SNHA based on the number and rarity of tracked elements present. 
 
Public recreational opportunities will include hunting, hiking, bird watching, photography, and general 
nature study.  Educational opportunities may exist as priority wildlife habitats are managed for or 
maintained. 
 
Additional Comments:  
 
Access is via SMGL and is secure. 
 
Preliminary estimates of five-year stewardship expenditures include removal of one small cabin at an 
estimated cost of approximately $2000.     
 
No short-term revenue is anticipated from the tract. 
 
Program Potential:  ☒ Game Land ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area ☐ Fishing Access Area 

           ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-Robertson 
Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
 
 

 

30 of 30 



 
 

WORKSHEET  
Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 

  
Tract Name (South Mountains GL)  Deviney 2014 Tract (Rutherford County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 
5 

     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 
5 

     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 
5 

     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 
5 

     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 
5 

     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 30 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Plethodon meridianus South Mountain Gray-cheeked Salamander SR

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

BIRDS

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Lanius ludovicianus Loggerhead Shrike SC

Corvus corax Common Raven  

Dendroica magnolia Magnolia Warbler SR

Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Spiza americana Dickcissel  

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole  

MAMMALS

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew  

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat  

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat  

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis  

Neotoma magister Allegheny Woodrat SC

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Cemophora coccinea Scarlet Snake  

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake  

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Deviney 2014 Tract (Rutherford County) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!(226

O
ld

C
C

Rd

J onestown Rd

Melton Rd

North
Fork

Rd

Rosa Ln

Hunt Rd

Crow W
oods

Rd

John Hudson Rd

Nathaniel D
r

Jordan Tr  

_̂

Rutherford
County

Deviney 2014 Tract
South Mountains GL
Rutherford County

28.5 Acres

/February 9, 2015 0 21 Miles

South Mountains GL

Deviney 2014 Tract

South Mountains GL CURE  



NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

Rutherford
County

Deviney 2014 Tract
South Mountains GL
Rutherford County

28.5 Acres

/February 9, 2015 0 500250 Feet

South Mountains GL

Deviney 2014 Tract

South Mountains GL CURE  



 

 

EXHIBIT G-4 
April 21, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  August 27, 2015  

 

Tract:  Deviney Brier Creek Tracts; Rutherford County, 87 Acres  
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
Pitman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant  $ 202,500 
Wildlife Resources Commission    $   89,500 
  
Total Cost:      $ 292,000 ($ 3,356/Acre) 
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No  ☐ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 
Requested by: Appraiser Effective Date Appraised Value 

 
WRC 

 
Mike Moore  

 
1/27/16 

 
$ 270,000 ($ 3,103/Acre) 

 
Date of Appraisal:  See above. 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No ☐ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
 

  
Additional Comments:  Purchase price exceeds appraised value by $22,000 (approx. 8%).  However, 
exceeding appraised value is justified.  Legal public access from Brier Creek Rd. (SR 1735) was 
requested by the public and subsequently identified as a valid need in the South Mountains Game Land 
Management Plan.  Although acquisition of the Deviney Bier Creek tracts does not satisfy this need 
completely (several additional acquisitions are also required), it does represent a move in that direction 
and enhances the potential for providing public access in the future.  The existing game lands adjacent to 
this location are also within an active prescribed burn unit and acquisition of the Deviney Bier Creek 
tracts provides critical additional smoke buffer between game lands and adjacent private ownership.   

$ 6,400 

NA 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET 

Five Year Stewardship Costs and Revenue Projections  

(Five Years Post Acquisition) 

      STEWARDSHIP 

  
    

  

  Estimated Stewardship Expenditures  

Tract Name Activity Quantity Unit  Unit Cost   Total Cost  

Deviney Brier 
Creek Tracts 

  
Boundary 
Establishment 
(Contract Survey) 4,280 ft. $1.25                           $5,350    

      

 

Remove signs & 
paint from interior 
lines 1.5 mi. $200 $300 

 

 
Install gate to 
control vehicular 
access 1 ea. $750 $750 

      

       

  Total       $6,400.00 

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

  
     

      

      

      

      REVENUE 

  
    

  

  Estimated Revenue Projections  

Tract Name Source Quantity Unit  Unit Revenue   Total Revenue  

  
Deviney Brier 
Creek Tracts NA NA NA NA  $                           -    

  
    

  

  Total        $                           -    

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

      

       
 



 

 

 
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Gordon Warburton/Kip Hollifield 
 

Date First Presented to WRC:  August 27, 2015 
 
Tract Name:  Deviney Brier Creek Tracts 
 
Acreage:  205.75 – includes 5 tracts, one of which has 9 lots within it 
 
PIN:   706883 (40 acres Rutherford Co.) 
 706515 (47 acres Rutherford Co.) 
 2606082774 (15 acres Cleveland Co.) 
 2607301245 (50 acres Cleveland Co.) 
 2606487945 (45.97 acres Cleveland Co.) 
 2606498456 (0.53 acres Cleveland Co.) 
 2606497410 (0.77 acres Cleveland Co.) 
 2606496324 (0.94 acres Cleveland Co.) 
 2606495296 (0.87 acres Cleveland Co.) 
 2606496116 (0.98 acres Cleveland Co.) 
 2606495096 (0.98 acres Cleveland Co.) 
 2606486837 (0.87 acres Cleveland Co.) 
 2606486778 (0.86 acres Cleveland Co.) 
 2606487627 (0.98 acres Cleveland Co.) 
 
County:  Rutherford and Cleveland 
 
Estimated Value:  $617,250 ($3,000/acre- the tracts can be purchased together or separately) 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Jim Deviney 
Address:   838 Moriah School Road, Casar, NC 28020 
Phone: (704) 538-9071 
         
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest  ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☒ CWMTF ☒ OTHER (explain):  PR Land Acquisition Grant, WRC 
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  Acquisition of these tracts would 
solidify WRC ownership at the end of Brier Creek Rd. (S.R. 1535) and remove two inholdings in 
South Mountains Game Land (SMGL).  The tracts that are not inholdings are immediately 
adjacent to SMGL.  All the tracts are accessed from a private road(s) that continues from the end  



 

 

 
of Brier Creek Rd.  There are no recorded ROW easements in place and the use of the private 
roads is prescriptive only.  Although it’s unlikely that purchase of these tracts would provide any 
immediate additional public access to SMGL, acquisition of these tracts are key to future public 
access from Brier Creek Rd.  Public access from Brier Creek Rd. does not exist currently and is 
identified as a priority in the SMGL Management Plan.  Use of the private road for 
administrative access is not anticipated to be a problem in the interim. 
 
The southernmost inholding has a cabin and an approximately two acre pond on it that is used by 
the Deviney family.  This inholding also contains nine subdivided lots that are currently 
unimproved.  Mr. Deviney indicated that he may retain this inholding but hasn’t fully decided 
and it is currently offered for sale along with the four other tracts. 
 
The tracts are are predominately Appalachian oak forest with some Appalachian cove forest and 
dry coniferous woodlands also present.  Management objectives will include restoring or 
maintaining the oak forest, cove forest, and dry coniferous woodlands priority wildlife habitats 
that are located on the tracts.  Common wildlife species found on the tracts include wild turkey, 
black bear, white-tailed deer, raccoon, and gray squirrel.  Priority species likely found on the 
tracts as either permanent residents or transients include:  South Mountain gray-cheeked 
salamander (Plethodon meridianus), timber rattlesnake (Crotalus horridus), Eastern box turtle 
(Terapene carolina), northern long-eared bat (Myotis septentrionalis), wood thrush (Hylocichla 

mustelina), Eastern wood-peewee (Contopus virens), and hooded warbler (Setophaga citrina).   
 
Both inholdings are embedded within the Rollins/South Mountains State Natural Area.  Both the 
R and C ratings for this natural area are outstanding.  The R rating (Element Representational 
Rating) is designed to indicate a SNHA’s potential to contribute to a collection of the best sites 
for each tracked element within the state.  The C rating (Element Collective Rating) evaluates the 
conservation value of each SNHA based on the number and rarity of tracked elements present. 
The other three tracts are immediately adjacent the current natural area.   
 
Public recreational opportunities will include hunting, hiking, bird watching, photography, and 
general nature study.  Educational opportunities may exist as priority wildlife habitats are 
managed for or maintained. 
 
Additional Comments: NA 
 
Program Potential:  ☒ Game Land (South Mountains) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

☒ Fishing Access Area             ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 

29 of 30 



 
 

WORKSHEET  
Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 

  
Tract Name (South Mountains GL)  Deviney Brier Creek Tracts (Rutherford/Cleveland 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  4 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 29 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Plethodon meridianus South Mountain Gray-cheeked Salamander SR

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

BIRDS

Lophodytes cucullatus Hooded Merganser  

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Lanius ludovicianus Loggerhead Shrike SC

Corvus corax Common Raven  

Dendroica magnolia Magnolia Warbler SR

Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Spiza americana Dickcissel  

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole  

MAMMALS

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew  

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat  

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat  

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis  

Neotoma magister Allegheny Woodrat SC

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Apalone spinifera aspera Gulf Coast Spiny Softshell  

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Cemophora coccinea Scarlet Snake  

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake  

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake  

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Deviney Brier Creek Tracts (Rutherford County) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

Brier Creek

Nettle Branch

Pheasant Creek

Br
ia

r Creek Rd

S
R

 1
73

5

S
R

 1
53

5

_̂

Rutherford
County

Deviney Brier Creek Tracts
South Mountains GL

Cleveland & Rutherford County
205.75 Acres

/June 16, 2015 0 10.5 Miles

South Mountains GL

Deviney Cleveland Co. Tracts  
(Potential Future Acquisitions)

Cleveland
County

Burke
County

40 Ac

47 Ac

15 Ac

50 Ac

46 Ac

Deviney Rutherford Co.Tracts  
(Current Acquisition Project)



Br
ie

r C
re

ek

Bria
r C

re
ek

Rd

SR
 1735

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

Rutherford
County

Deviney Brier Creek Tracts
South Mountains GL

Cleveland & Rutherford County
205.75 Acres

/June 16, 2015 0 2,0001,000 Feet

South Mountains GL

Deviney Brier Creek Tracts  

Cleveland
County

Burke
County

40 Ac

47 Ac



 

 

EXHIBIT G-5 
April 21, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  April 21, 2016  

 

Tract:   DMF Fisherman’s Wharf Reallocation; Hyde County, 17.17 Acres 
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
Reallocation from Division of Marine Fisheries to WRC  
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No  ☒ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 

Date of Appraisal:  NA 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No ☒ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates): Motorboat Registration Receipts 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
  

Additional Comments:  NA 

 $0 

 $0 



 

 

 
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Isaac Harrold 

 
Date First Presented to WRC:  April 21, 2016 
 
Tract Name:  DMF Fisherman’s Wharf Reallocation Tracts 
 
Acreage:  17.17  
 
County:  Hyde 
 
Estimated Value:  NA – reallocation from Division of Marine Fisheries to WRC 
 
Property Owner or Representative: Suzanne R. Guthrie 

Administrative Services Officer 
DEQ-Division of Marine Fisheries 
3441 Arendell Street 
Morehead City, NC  28557 

 
Phone:  252-808-8005    office 

252-727-0559    fax 
Email:  Suzanne.Guthrie@ncdenr.gov  

 
Status:  ☒ High Interest  ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest  ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ Clean Water Management Trust Fund     

☒ OTHER (explain):  NA – reallocation from DMF to WRC 
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  In 2009, Division of Marine Fisheries used 
Waterfront Access and Marine Industry (WAMI) funds to purchase a 3.71-acre parcel adjacent to WRC’s 
Swan Quarter Boating Access Area.  Marine Fisheries originally intended to use the site for stock piling 
oyster cultch materials.  However, the passing of stricter storm water runoff regulations since that time 
has prevented the intended use the property.  Also in 2009, Marine Fisheries accepted a donation of 13.46 
acres immediately south of the WAMI tract, with the intent of supporting potential research interests 
which never developed.           
 
Given the inability to use the purchased property as intended, and the lack of research interest in the 
adjacent donated property, Division of Marine Fisheries has offered to reallocate the entire 17.17 acres to 
WRC.  This reallocation offers future potential for accommodating overflow parking associated with the 
Swan Quarter BAA and staff recommends approval for the reallocation. 
 
 
 

mailto:Suzanne.Guthrie@ncdenr.gov


 

 

 

 

 

Additional Comments:  See attached letter from Marine Fisheries indicating desire to reallocate the 
property.    
 

Program Potential:  ☐ Game Land   ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

           ☐ Fishing Access Area                    ☒ Boating Access Area 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Motorboat 
Registration Receipts. 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
 
 

 

NA 









!(45

3rd
 S

t

Oyster Creek St

Church St

Landing Rd

2nd St

Pearl St

2nd St

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

£¤264DMF Fisherman's Wharf 
Reallocation - Hyde County 

17.17 Acres

/March 27, 2016
0 500 1,000250 Feet

Hyde
County

Swanquarter BAA (5 Ac.)

DMF Tracts (17.17 Ac.)



 

 

EXHIBIT G-6 
April 21, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  April 21, 2016  

 

Tract:   DOA Ocean Isle Beach Reallocation; Brunswick County, 3.2 Acres 
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
Reallocation from Department of Administration to WRC  
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No  ☒ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 

Date of Appraisal:  NA 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No ☒ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates): Motorboat Registration Receipts 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
  

Additional Comments:  NA 

 $0 

 $0 



 

 

 
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Isaac Harrold 

 
Date First Presented to WRC:  April 21, 2016 
 
Tract Name:  DOA Ocean Isle Beach Reallocation Tract 
 
Acreage:  3.2  
 
Parcel ID:  257DH01208 
 
County:  Brunswick 
 
Estimated Value:  NA – reallocation from Department of Administration to WRC 
 
Property Owner or Representative: David Keeley 

Real Property Agent 
State Property Office 
Department of Administration 
1321 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC  27699-1321 

 
Phone:  919-807-4675    office 
Email: David.Keeley@doa.nc.gov 

 
Status:  ☒ High Interest  ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest  ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ Clean Water Management Trust Fund     

☒ OTHER (explain):  NA – reallocation from DOA to WRC 
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  WRC currently owns and operates a boating 
access area beneath the NC 904 Bridge on the Intracoastal Waterway at Ocean Isle Beach in Onslow 
County.  This site is very well used and often congested.  One amenity to relieve congestion and enhance 
the experience of users, particularly when arriving and/or leaving the area, involves the addition of a 
courtesy dock.  Existing WRC-allocated property at this location is not sufficient in size or configuration 
to accommodate this addition.  However, a 3.2-acre parcel immediately west of the existing access area is 
under the management jurisdiction of Department of Administration and is available for reallocation.  
Transfer of management authority for this parcel to WRC will provide an ideal location for adding a 
floating courtesy dock to serve the existing facility.  
 
Additional Comments:  NA   
 

 

mailto:David.Keeley@doa.nc.gov


 

 

 

 

 

 

Program Potential:  ☐ Game Land   ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

           ☐ Fishing Access Area                    ☒ Boating Access Area 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Motorboat 
Registration Receipts. 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
 
 

 

NA 



NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

§̈¦40
£¤74

£¤421

£¤76

£¤17

£¤701

£¤76 £¤17DOA Reallocation
Ocean Isle Beach

Brunswick County, 3.2 Acres

/March 27, 2016 0 100 20050 Feet

Brunswick
County

DOA Tract (3.2 Ac.)



 

 

EXHIBIT G-7 
April 21, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  July 15, 2015  

 

Tract:  Eure Tract; Gates County,  271.94 Acres 
Horton Tract; Gates County,   50.00 Acres  

     321.94 Acres 
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
          Eure  Horton  Total 
Pitman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant $ 244,500 $ 130,500 $ 375,000 
Wildlife Resources Commission   $   81,500 $   43,500 $ 125,000 
  
Total Cost:     $ 326,000  $ 174,000 $ 500,000 
      $ 1,199/Acre $ 3,480/Acre $ 1,553/Acre 
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No  ☐ NA 
If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   

 
Tract Requested by: Appraiser Effective Date Appraised Value 

Eure WRC Quinten Bell 10/13/15 $ 326,000 ($ 1,188/Acre) 
Horton WRC Quinten Bell 10/13/15 $ 174,000 ($3,480/Acre) 

 
Date of Appraisal:  See above. 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No ☐ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
 

  
Additional Comments:  N/A   

$ 150,270 

$ 60,000 



 

 

 
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Tommy Hughes 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  May 21, 2015 
 
Tract Name:  Eure/Horton Tracts (PIN: 6927917217 & 6936093980) 
 
Acreage:  321.94 
 
County:  Gates 
 
Estimated Value:  $ 700,000 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Bundy Lane 
 

Phone:  (252) 398-7705 Mobile 
 
Address:  463 Cotton Gin Road, Gates, NC 27937 
                               
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☒ CWMTF    

☒ OTHER (explain):  Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant  

 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  Property consists of upland natural 
regenerated pines and hardwoods following recent clear cuts, unthinned pine stands, old fields 
and managed openings, power line ROW, and gum drains within the Chowan River Basin.   The 
loblolly pine stands need clearcutting and incorporated into adjacent clear cuts for longleaf pine 
and associated groundcover restoration.  The tract supports NCWRC Wildlife Action Plan 
Priority habitats and species and will provide valuable habitat for, reptiles and amphibians, 
neotropical migrants, whitetail deer, wild turkey, black bear, small game, and furbearers. Priority 
species likely to occur on the tract are identified in the attached table.  
 
Based upon data found in the NC Conservation Planning Tool, the Eure/Horton Tracts 
Biodiversity index averaged a score of 6 out of 10 (1- low-10 high values).  Approximately 15% 
of the tracts scored between 7-8.  The Biodiversity/Wildlife Habitat Index prioritizes aquatic and 
terrestrial habitat, landscape function and connectivity.  
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

Additional Comments: Tracts are inholdings bordered by existing Chowan Swamp Game Land 
on three sides.  Current access to existing game land tract is by ROW through the Eure/Horton 
tracts.  Landowner is exploring solar energy field leases. The tracts hold an active sand mining 
permit.   
 
5- Year Estimated Stewardship Costs  

    

      Description Quantity Unit  Unit/Cost   Total  
 Maintain ROW Road 1.25 mi  $   1,500.00   $   9,375.00  

 Maintain Roads/Trails 0.7 mi  $   1,500.00  $   2.250.00  

Establish Gate 2 ea  $   1,000.00   $   2,000.00   

Maintain Gate 4 ea  $      100.00   $   2,000.00  

      

 Prescribed Burning -yr 4-5 205 ac  $        30.00   $   6,150.00  

 Boundary Establishment 0.85 mi  $      550.00   $      467.50  

 Boundary Removal 2.65 mi  $      100.00  $      265.00  

Boundary Maintenance- yr 4 0.85 mi  $      135.00   $      114.75  

 Longleaf/NWSG 
Reforestation/Restoration(herbicide, 
drum chop, plant Longleaf and NWSG) 125 ac  $     600.00 $  75,000.00 

 Reforestation/Restoration of clear cut 
loblolly pines               80 ac $     462.00 $  36,960.00  

Seed/Maintain Openings 14.5 ac $     175.00 $ 1 ,2687.50  

   
 Total   $ 150,269.75  

 
      5-Year Anticipated Revenue 

     
   

 Value   Total  

 Harvest  Loblolly Pine 80 ac  $      750.00   $  60,000.00  

 
   

 Total   $  60,000.00  

  
 
 
Program Potential:  ☒ Game Land (Chowan Swamp) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

           ☐ Fishing Access Area                    ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-Robertson 
Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No  

26 of 30 



 

 

 
WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Chowan Swamp GL) Eure/Horton Tracts (Gates County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

4 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

4 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

3 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

 NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

 NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

 NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 26 
     
 
 
 

  
     



SPECIES
Floodplain 

Forest
Early 

Successional
Dry Coniferous Woodlands 

(Plantation) State Status 

BIRDS
American Kestrel X X
American Woodcock X X
Barn Owl X
Brown-headed Nuthatch X
Chimney Swift X
Chuck-will's-widow X X
Common Nighthawk X X
Cooper's Hawk X SC
Eastern Kingbird X
Eastern Meadowlark X
Eastern Wood-pewee X X
Field Sparrow X
Grasshopper Sparrow X
Hairy Woodpecker X
Henslow's Sparrow X SR
Hooded Warbler X
Kentucky Warbler X
Northern Bobwhite X X
Northern Flicker X
Orchard Oriole X
Prairie Warbler X
Red-headed Woodpecker X X
Swainson's Warbler X
Whip-poor-will X X
Wood Thrush X
Worm-eating Warbler X X
Yellow-billed Cuckoo X
Yellow-crowned Night-heron X

MAMMALS
Cotton Mouse X
Eastern Mole X
Least Shrew X
Long-tailed Weasel X
Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat X T

Eure-Horton Tracts - Wildlife Action Plan Priority Habitats & Species

HABITATS



SPECIES
Floodplain 

Forest
Early 

Successional
Dry Coniferous Woodlands 

(Plantation) State Status
AMPHIBIANS

Eastern Spadefoot X
Four-toed Salamander X SC
Mabee's Salamander X SR
Marbled Salamander X
Southern Dusky Salamander X

REPTILES
Broad-headed Skink X
Common Ribbonsnake X
Eastern Box Turtle X X
Eastern Hog-nosed Snake X
Eastern Kingsnake X X
Eastern Slender Glass Lizard X
Mole Kingsnake X
Spotted Turtle X
Timber (Canebrake) Rattlesnake X X SC

Eure-Horton Tracts - Wildlife Action Plan Priority Habitats & Species

HABITATS



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

Taylor Mill Rd

Ft
Is

la
nd

Ln

Little Island Rd

D
ou

gh
tie

Ln

Fort Island Rd

Hat t ell LnBa
rfi

el
d 

Rd

Ta
yl

or
R

d

Rive
r D

r

Sandy
D

r

Fr
ee

m
an

 D
r

_̂

Eure/HortonTracts
Chowan Swamp GL

Gates County
322 Acres

/April 19, 2015 0 10.5 Miles

Chowan Swamp GL

Horton Tract

Gates
County

Chowan River
Eure Tract



Ft
 Is

la
nd

 L
n

Fort Island Rd

Ft
Is

la
nd

Ln

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

Eure/HortonTracts
Chowan Swamp GL

Gates County
322 Acres

/April 19, 2015 0 2,0001,000 Feet

Chowan Swamp GL
Horton Tract

Gates
County

Eure Tract



 

 

EXHIBIT G-8 
April 21, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  December 10, 2015  

 

Tract:  Little Macedonia Tract; Brunswick County, 261.350 Acres  
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
 
Pitman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant  $ 393,750 
 
Wildlife Resources Commission    $ 131,250 
  
Total Cost:      $ 525,000 ($ 2,009/Acre) 
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No  ☐ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 
Requested by: Appraiser Effective Date Appraised Value 

 
WRC 

 
Keith McDonald  

 
2/26/16 

 
$ 525,000 ($ 2,009/Acre) 

 
Date of Appraisal:  See above. 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No ☐ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
 

  

Additional Comments:  This site represents an ideal location for construction of a permanent work 
station for the Bolivia crew and would replace the current leased facility ($1,260/mo.).  Estimate for new 
depot construction is $750,000.   

$ 89,100 

NA 



 

 

 
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Tommy Hughes 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  December 10, 2015 
 
Tract Name:  Little Macedonia  
 
Acreage:  261.350 
 
County:  Brunswick 
 
Pin Number: 1510-0-031 

 
Estimated Value:  $ 530,000 asking price.  Realtor advises owner is willing to sale below fair 
market value.  Brunswick County indicates a total tax value of $1,954,900.  A 2011 appraisal 
provided by the realtor values the property at $970,000. 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Linda Stephens (Realtor) 
 

Phone:  (W) 910-231-0640 Email: lindastephens1948@atmc.net 
 
Address:  Coldwell Banker Sea Coast Advantage Holden Beach 
       3247 Holden Beach Road SW 
       Supply, NC 28462 
             
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF  

☒ OTHER (explain):  Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant, WRC;    
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  The Little Macedonia Tract is located 
in Brunswick County, approximately 2.41 miles northwest of Supply, 8.6 miles southwest of the 
temporary Bolivia Depot and 3.2 miles southeast of the state-owned Juniper Creek Game Land.  
The tract represents an excellent location to construct a depot facility for the Bolivia crew. 
 
The site is 261 acres and contains two agricultural fields, a small pond and cutover woodlands.  
The site contains sandy well drained soils that should be suitable for depot construction.  The site 
does not support county water or sewer, but judging from homes in the area, it should support a 
suitable well and septic system. 



 

 

 
 
 
In addition to a depot site, the tract is large enough to potentially allow development of a dove 
field and could provide limited deer and small game hunting.  The tract is bounded on the east 
south and west by a small creek and pocosin and contains considerable topography. The property 
is primarily uplands that have been cutover.  Currently, there is no marketable timber on the 
property.   
 
The tract supports NCWRC Wildlife Action Plan Priority habitats (early successional with the 
potential to restore dry longleaf pine) and species and will provide valuable habitat for reptiles, 
amphibians, neo-tropical migrants, white-tailed deer, wild turkey, small game, and furbearers.  
 
Access to the property is via a state road (Little Macedonia). The interior of the property contains 
a network of unimproved sandy roads that provide administrative access and with improvement 
could provide public access points.  
 
Based upon data found in the NC Conservation Planning Tool, the Little Macedonia Tract’s 
Biodiversity index ranges from 0-4.  Approximately 10% of the site is ranked as a 1 and 10% 
ranked as a 4 with the balance of the tract being assessed as a 0 (1- low-10 high values).  The 
Biodiversity/Wildlife Habitat Index prioritizes aquatic and terrestrial habitat, landscape function, 
and connectivity.  
 
Additional Comments: Suitable, reasonably priced land for depot construction in Brunswick 
County is difficult to locate.  This tract is located close to all areas the Bolivia crew currently 
services.  The temporary depot the Bolivia crew is working out of is currently adequate but its 
future is uncertain.  This tract offers an opportunity to develop a permanent location from which 
this crew can work. 
 
Although additional evaluation is necessary to confirm, the site may also represent potential to 
develop a shooting range. 
 
Program Potential: ☒ Game Land (Juniper Creek) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

   ☐ Fishing Access Area     ☒ Potential Depot Site 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 

22 of 30 



 

 

  
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name  Little Macedonia Tract  (Brunswick County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 
3 

     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 
5 

     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 
1 

     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 
3 

     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 
5 

     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

No 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 22 
     

 
  



 

 

 

 
 
 

Little Macedonia Tract 

 

5- Year Estimated Stewardship Costs      

     

Description Quantity Unit  Unit/Cost   Total (5-yrs) 

Improve Road System – yr. 1  1 mi    $ 50,000      $    50,000 

Maintain Road System- yr 2-5                                                     1 ea        $    2,500          $    10,000 

Establish Gate – yr. 1 7 ea $     1,500       $   10,500  

Maintain Gate – yr. 2 - 5 7 ea $      200       $      5,600  

Boundary Establishment – yr. 1 4 mi $   1 ,500      $     6,000  

Boundary Maintenance- yr. 4 4 mi $       500      $     2,000  

Administer Co-Op Farm Lease 1 ea $    1,000           $     5,000 

Depot Construction 1          Ea  $ 750,000           $ 750,000 

    Total            $ 839,100 

     

5-Year Anticipated Revenue     

    Value   Total  
Farm Co-Op Lease-If we decide to lease rather than 
developing a dove field. 20         ac     $            40             $  800 

    Total            $  800 

     

     

  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
     

 

    

     



 

 

 
 

Potential Restoration 

 



Shallo
tte

!(211

£¤17

£¤17

£¤17

£¤17

Q uilt Rd

Middle River Rd

Royal Way

Ruffin Ln

Pro spe
ct Rd

Eastfi e ldLn

Hew
ett

ow
n R

d

Landfill Rd

Buffal o
Ln

Supply St

Stanley Rd Taft Rd

Hewett RdLula Trl

Cumbee Rd

Civie

tow
n Rd

Turnpike Rd

Benton Rd

Old C
c R

d
Mt

Pi
sg

ah
Rd

Little MacEdonia Rd

Makatoka Rd

Stone
Ch imney

Rd

Wo
od

ard
Rd

Greenfi e ld Rd

Smith
Rd

Gall
ow

ay

Rd

Se
lle

rs
Rd

BY Pass Way

Zio
nH

ill
Rd

Roy
al

Oa
k R

d

_̂

Little Macedonia Tract
Potential Depot SIte
Brunswick County

261 Acres

/November 13, 2015 0 0.5 10.25 Miles

Brunswick
County

Green Swamp GL 

Little Macedonia Tract



Little MacEdonia Rd

Eastfield Ln

Westf i e
ld

Ln

Cowtrain R d

Stevenson RdClaybranch Rd

Burney Ave

Middle River

!(211

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

Little Macedonia Tract
Potential Depot SIte
Brunswick County

261 Acres

/November 13, 2015 0 1,000 2,000500 Feet

Brunswick
County

Little Macedonia Tract



 

 

EXHIBIT G-9 
April 21, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  October 30, 2014  

 

Tract:  McEachern Tract; Bladen County, 175 Acres  
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
Wildlife Resources Commission (WRC)  $ 100,000 (WRC Funds) 
NC Coastal Land Trust  (NCCLT)     $ 335,000 (North American Wetlands Conservation Act) 
  
Total Cost:                    $ 435,000 ($ 2,486/Acre) 
 
Note:  WRC will contribute $100,000 ($ 571/Acre) of agency funds.  NC Coastal Land Trust will 

contribute the balance via a grant from the North American Wetlands Conservation Act.  
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No  ☐ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 

Requested by: Appraiser Effective Date Appraised Value 

NCCLT Earl Worsley 1/20/2015 $ 435,000 ($2,486/Acre) 
 

Date of Appraisal:  See above. 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☐ Yes          ☒ No ☐ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
  

Additional Comments:  NA 

 13,530 

22,500 



 

 

 
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Tommy Hughes 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  October 30, 2014 
 
Tract Name:  McEachern Tract  

(PIN 129500873390) 
 
Acreage:  175 
 
County:  Bladen 
 
Estimated Value:  $ 498,750 Asking Price 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Albert Shaw 

 
Phone:  (C) 910-876-1361 
 
Address:  2262 Burney Ford Road 

     Clarkton, NC 28433 
      

Status:  ☒ High Interest  ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest  ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ Clean Water Management Trust Fund     

☒ OTHER (explain):  WRC staff will work with the NC Coastal Land Trust or Ducks 
Unlimited to apply for a North American Wetland Conservation Act (NAWCA) Grant 
to purchase the tract.  Initial acquisition will be accomplished by one of the non-
profits, who will then transfer the tract to WRC if approved.  There is a possibility that 
additional funds may be required to complete the purchase, but that will not be known 
until appraisals are completed and negotiations begin on the tract.  The NAWCA grant 
application will seek $470,000.   

 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  Property consists of lowland natural 
regenerated hardwoods consisting of oaks, cypress and gum along the Cape Fear River.  The upland sites 
support 22 year old naturally seeded loblolly pine that needs thinning and burning.  Several large sloughs 
are contained on the property and support excellent examples of freshwater marsh.  The tract has 
approximately 1,700 feet of river frontage along the Cape Fear and contains a high bluff.  The tract 
supports NCWRC Wildlife Action Plan Priority habitats and species and will provide valuable habitat for 
waterfowl, reptiles and amphibians, Neotropical migrants, whitetail deer, wild turkey, small game and 
furbearers.  
 
Based upon data found in the NC Conservation Planning Tool, the McEachern Biodiversity index 
averaged a score of 6 out of 10 (1= low values, 10= high values).  Approximately 45% of the tract scored  
 



 

 

 
 
 
between 7 and 8.  The Biodiversity/Wildlife Habitat Index prioritizes aquatic and terrestrial habitat, 
landscape function and connectivity.  Areas that support this level of species richness should be targeted 
for protection. 
 
Additional Comments:  
 
5- Year Estimated Stewardship Costs  

   

     Description Quantity Unit  Unit/Cost   Total  

Maintain Access Road 1 mi  $   1,000.00   $    5,000.00  

Establish Gate 1 ea  $   1,000.00   $    1,000.00  

Maintain Gate 1 ea  $      100.00   $        500.00  

Prescribe Burning -yr 1 75 ac  $         30.00   $    2,250.00  

Prescribe Burning -yr 4 75 ac  $         30.00   $    2,250.00  

Boundary Establishment 2.3 mi  $      550.00   $    1,265.00  

Boundary Maintenance- yr 4 2.3 mi  $      550.00   $    1,265.00  

     

   
 Total   $  13,530.00  

     5-Year Anticipated Revenue 
    

   
Value Total 

Thin  22 year Loblolly Pine 45 ac  $      500.00   $  22,500.00  

     

   
 Total   $  22,500.00  

      
 
Program Potential:  ☒ Game Land (Whitehall Plantation) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

            ☐ Fishing Access Area                    ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-Robertson 
Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
 
 

 

29 of 30 



 
 

WORKSHEET  
Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 

  
Tract Name (Cape Fear River)  McEachern (Bladen County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 
4 

     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 
5 

     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 
5 

     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 
5 

     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 
5 

     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 29 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Eurycea quadridigitata Dwarf Salamander SC

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

Stereochilus marginatus Many-lined Salamander  

Ambystoma mabeei Mabee's Salamander SR

Siren lacertina Greater Siren  

Bufo quercicus Oak Toad SR

Hyla andersonii Pine Barrens Treefrog SR

Pseudacris brimleyi Brimley's Chorus Frog  

Pseudacris ornata Ornate Chorus Frog SR

Rana capito Gopher Frog T

BIRDS

Anas discors Blue-winged Teal  

Lophodytes cucullatus Hooded Merganser  

Anhinga anhinga Anhinga  

Ixobrychus exilis Least Bittern SC

Egretta caerulea Little Blue Heron SC

Egretta tricolor Tricolored Heron SC

Nyctanassa violacea Yellow-crowned Night-Heron  

Eudocimus albus White Ibis  

Ictinia mississippiensis Mississippi Kite  

Haliaeetus leucocephalus Bald Eagle T

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Rallus elegans King Rail  

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Picoides borealis Red-cockaded Woodpecker LE E

Lanius ludovicianus Loggerhead Shrike SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Aimophila aestivalis Bachman's Sparrow SC

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

MAMMALS

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat  

Myotis austroriparius Southeastern Myotis SC

Sciurus niger Eastern Fox Squirrel SR-G

REPTILES

Clemmys guttata Spotted Turtle  

Deirochelys reticularia Chicken Turtle SR

Kinosternon baurii Striped Mud Turtle  

Alligator mississippiensis American Alligator SAT T

Ophisaurus attenuatus Slender Glass Lizard SR

Ophisaurus mimicus Mimic Glass Lizard SC

Cemophora coccinea Scarlet Snake  

Farancia erytrogramma Rainbow Snake  

Heterodon simus Southern Hognose Snake SC

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake  

Masticophis flagellum Coachwhip SR

Regina rigida Glossy Crayfish Snake SR

Rhadinaea flavilata Pine Woods Snake  

Seminatrix pygaea Black Swamp Snake SR

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Micrurus fulvius Eastern Coral Snake E

Crotalus adamanteus Eastern Diamondback Rattlesnake E

Sistrurus miliarius Pygmy Rattlesnake SC

McEachern Tract (Bladen County) - Priority Species



!(87

!(53

Ellison Rd

Kelly Cove Dr

Brighten Rd

Yo
un

gs
tow

n Rd

Jam
es

Porter Rd
Cassius Smith

Rd

Elwell Ferry Rd

Natmore Rd

Over
Lyo

n Rd

Ra
mah

Fa
rm

Rd

White Oak Rd

_̂

Bladen
County

McEachern Tract
Bladen County

175 Acres

/October 8, 2014 0 1 20.5 Miles

Cape

Fear
River

McEachern Tract
McFayden Tract
(acquired April 2014) 



NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

Bladen
County

McEachern Tract
Bladen County

175 Acres

/October 8, 2014 0 1,000 2,000500 Feet

McEachern Tract



 

 

EXHIBIT G-10 
April 21, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  April 21, 2016  

 

Tract:   Mashie Stomp; Haywood County, 409 Acres 
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
Accept donation of the property from The Conservation Fund  
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No  ☒ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 

Date of Appraisal:  NA 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No ☒ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
  
Additional Comments:  NA 

 $13,860 

 $0 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET 

Five Year Stewardship Costs and Revenue Projections  

(Five Years Post Acquisition) 
      

STEWARDSHIP 

        

  Estimated Stewardship Expenditures  

Tract Name Activity Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost 

      
Mashie 
Stomp 

 Boundary 
Establishment  6 mi. $810 $ 4860 

      

 
Gravel to maintain 
access road    $ 3000 

       

 Parking area 1 1 $5,000 $6000 

      

  Total       $ 13,860.00 

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

       

      

      

      

      

REVENUE 

        

  Estimated Revenue Projections  

Tract Name Source Quantity Unit  Unit Revenue   Total Revenue  

           
Mashie 
Stomp NA NA NA NA  $                           -    

      

  Total        $                           -    

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

      

      

      
 
 
 



  
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  David Stewart  
 
Date First Presented to WRC:   April 21, 2016  
   
Tract Name:  Mashie Stomp  
 
Acreage:  409 acres  
 
PIN:  7667-69-0792 and 7667-24-8214 
 
County:  Haywood 
 
Estimated Value:     NA - Mashie Stomp Tract will come to WRC as donation  
                                   Appraised value of Hawkins/Duke parcel: $908,000  
                                    Appraised value of Carver parcel: $1,215,000 
                                   (These parcels make up the Mashie Stomp Tract) 
 
Property Owner or Representative: The Conservation Fund c/o Justin Boner 
 
Phone:  919-475-6756  Email:  jboner@conservationfund.org 
 
Address:  PO Box 271, Chapel Hill, NC 27514 
 
Status:  ☒ High Interest  ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest  ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF    

☒ OTHER (explain):  NA – offered as a donation. 
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  Acquisition of this property is significant as 
part of the total management project being carried out in the mountain Eco region.  The Mashie Stomp 
Tract would be a significant part of the effort to protect, conserve, and manage properties in the Maggie 
Valley area. The property protects three tributaries to Johnathan Creek and their confluence with 
Johnathan Creek is less than two miles upstream of the Town of Maggie Valley drinking water supply 
intake on Jonathan Creek.  WRC ownership of the Mashie Stomp Tract will increase conservation 
ownership of properties in the immediate area such as the Great Smoky Mountains National Park, Blue 
Ridge Parkway, Pisgah and Nantahala National Forests, Cherokee Indian Reservation, and various private 
holdings that are in conservation ownership or have conservation easements.  In a broader sense, WRC 
ownership of the tract will help ensure ecosystem integrity at the landscape level by increasing 
connectivity of lands in conservation ownership.  WRC ownership will preserve and protect southeastern 
mountain riparian forest and headwater streams and habitat, as well as preserve and protect the quality of 
an active drinking water supply, thereby protecting the health of citizens and maintaining cost efficiency 
of water treatment.      
 
 
 



 
 
 
Management objectives will focus on continuing and/or expanding elk monitoring and research in 
Western North Carolina.  WRC ownership would ensure that critical elk habitat is conserved, and WRC 
ownership would provide areas for WRC staff to conduct elk research and monitoring projects.  WRC 
ownership may also provide opportunities to create some early successional habitat, which is also a 
priority wildlife habitat.  The Mashie Stomp tract does have some potential for habitat development for 
elk.  There are logging roads that can be seeded with elk forage grasses, as well as other areas that may 
present opportunities for habitat manipulation.  Additional exploration is necessary to determine extent of 
early successional habitat potential.       
 
Public recreational opportunities may include hunting, hiking, bird watching, photography, and general 
nature study.  Educational opportunities may exist as priority wildlife habitats are managed for or 
maintained. Common wildlife species found on the tract include wild turkey, black bear, white-tailed 
deer, gray squirrel, ruffed grouse as well as various songbirds, salamanders, and small mammals.    
 
Habitats are primarily Appalachian Oak Forest, with Appalachian Cove Forest, spruce-fir, and 
grass/shrub bald also present, 
 

Additional Comments:  The Mashie Stomp Tract is bordered on the north by the Great Smoky 
Mountains National Park.  Currently, the North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission does not have 
any public land inhabited by elk that can be managed for elk.  One of the major obstacles to elk 
management in North Carolina (outside of the Great Smoky Mountains National Park) is finding public 
lands that are suitable for development as elk habitat and for eventual use as a public hunting area for elk. 
There are a few areas on National Forest lands that are currently used by elk, but those lands may be 
restricted for management for elk under the current management restrictions of the US Forest Service. 
The Mashie Stomp Tract is located in close proximity to other tracts in the project area.  Efforts are being 
made to investigate the possibilities of connecting the tracts through additional acquisitions.  Future 
acquisitions to improve access to the tracts are also being investigated.  The goal of this purchase would 
be to acquire public land that already has elk on it, or in close proximity to it, that could be managed as 
elk habitat, or used for conducting elk research.  Having WRC owned land that can sustain a huntable elk 
herd is also a consideration.    
 
Five-year stewardship estimates include marking and maintain 6 miles of property boundary ($810/mi), 
adding gravel to the access road ($3,000), and constructing a parking area ($5,000) for a total estimate of 
$13,860. 
 
No short-term revenue is anticipated.    
 
Program Potential:  ☒ Game Land ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area ☐ Fishing Access Area 

           ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal: state match rates):  Pittman- 
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
 

 

29 of 30 



 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name    Mashie Stomp Tract (Haywood County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  4 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

Yes 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

Yes 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 29 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Plethodon jordani Red-cheeked Salamander  

Plethodon ventralis Southern Zigzag Salamander SC

Desmognathus imitator Imitator Salamander  

Desmognathus santeetlah Santeetlah Dusky Salamander SR

Desmognathus wrighti Pygmy Salamander SR

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

Necturus maculosus Mudpuppy SC

Cryptobranchus alleganiensis Hellbender SC

BIRDS

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Falco peregrinus Peregrine Falcon E

Coccyzus erythropthalmus Black-billed Cuckoo SR

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Sphyrapicus varius Yellow-bellied Sapsucker  

Empidonax alnorum Alder Flycatcher SR

Empidonax minimus Least Flycatcher  

Corvus corax Common Raven  

Sitta canadensis Red-breasted Nuthatch  

Certhia americana Brown Creeper SC

Troglodytes troglodytes Winter Wren  

Regulus satrapa Golden-crowned Kinglet  

Vermivora chrysoptera Golden-winged Warbler SC

Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole  

MAMMALS

Sorex dispar Long-tailed Shrew SC

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew  

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat  

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat  

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis  

Myotis leibii Eastern Small-footed Myotis SC

Sylvilagus obscurus Appalachian Cottontail SR-G

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

Mustela nivalis Least Weasel SR-G

Spilogale putorius Eastern Spotted Skunk  

REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Apalone spinifera spinifera Eastern Spiny Softshell SC

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake  

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake  

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Mashie Stomp Tract (Haywood County) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

Great Smoky Mountains National Park

Blue Ridge Parkway

Blue Ridge Parkway

£¤19

Fi
e

To
p

Rd

Bl
ue

R
i d

ge
Pk

y

Black Camp Gap Rd Fr
an

k Mehaffey R d

Pl
es

s
U

nd
er

woo
d

Rd

Sheepback Mountain
Rd

K nob Dr

Bil ly
D

r

Sky Dr

Brenn
an

Rd

Ca
rp

en
te

r B
r a

nc
h

R
d

Cabin Fever Tr

Dream
w

eaver W
ay

Hoghea

vi
n

Hg
ts

Se
tzer Cove Rd

Bo dale
Dr

State Road 1302  

Moonshineholler Dr

Va

lley Vis ta Rd

Low Gap Rd

Hannah Hill Rd

Brown Ridge Rd

R
en

a 
D

r

Cider Ridge  

Blue Ridge Pky

Sh
ee

pb
ac

k
M

ou
nt

ai
n

R
d

Blue Ridge Pky

M
ag

gi
e 

Va
lle

y

¬«215

¬«209

¬«110

£¤276

£¤19

£¤23

£¤74£¤276

§̈¦40

§̈¦40
Mashie Stomp Tract

Haywood County
409 Acres

/March 27, 2016
0 0.5 10.25 Miles

Haywood
County

Sheepback Mtn Tract
(Closed March 2016)

Mashie Stomp Tract 

_̂

Silvers Tract (Phase I Feb. 2014)

Wycle Fork Tract (Future)

Williams Tract (Future)



Great Smoky Mountains National Park

Blue Ridge Parkway

Bl
ue

Ridge Pky

B
la

ck
Ca

m
p

G
ap

R
d

Blue
R

idge
Pky

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

¬«215

¬«209

¬«110

£¤276

£¤19

£¤23

£¤74£¤276

§̈¦40

§̈¦40
Mashie Stomp Tract

Haywood County
409 Acres

/March 27, 2016
0 1,000 2,000500 Feet

Haywood
County

Mashie Stomp Tract 

_̂

Silvers Tract (Phase I Feb. 2014)

Federal Lands



 

 

EXHIBIT G-11 
April 21, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  April 21, 2016  

 

Tract:   Wycle Fork; Haywood County, 172 Acres 
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
Accept donation of the property from The Conservation Fund  
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No  ☒ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 

Date of Appraisal:  NA 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No ☒ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
  
Additional Comments:  NA 

 $1,822.50 

 $0 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET 

Five Year Stewardship Costs and Revenue Projections  

(Five Years Post Acquisition) 
      

STEWARDSHIP 

        

  Estimated Stewardship Expenditures  

Tract Name Activity Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost 

      

Wycle Fork 
 Boundary 
Establishment  2.25 mi. $810 $ 1,822.50 

      

         

       

           

      

  Total       $ 1,822.50 

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

       

      

      

      

      

REVENUE 

        

  Estimated Revenue Projections  

Tract Name Source Quantity Unit  Unit Revenue   Total Revenue  

           

Wycle Fork NA NA NA NA  $                           -    

      

  Total        $                           -    

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

      

      

      
 
 
 



  
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  David Stewart  
 
Date First Presented to WRC:   April 21, 2016  
   
Tract Name:  Wycle Fork Tract 
 
Acreage:  172  
 
PIN:  7666-69-8573 
 
County:  Haywood 
 
Estimated Value:  $740,000 – proposed for transfer to WRC as a donation. 
The Conservation Fund (TCF) will use private cash donations to purchase the 172-acre property at a total 
estimated project cost of $760,000 (includes appraisals, legal fees, closing costs, etc.).  TCF has submitted 
a 2016 CWMTF grant request in the amount of $380,000 and, if approved, will transfer the tract to WRC 
as a donation.  
 
Property Owner or Representative: The Conservation Fund c/o Justin Boner 
 

Phone:  919-475-6756  Email:  jboner@conservationfund.org 
 
Address:  PO Box 271, Chapel Hill, NC 27514 
 
Status:  ☒ High Interest  ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest  ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF    

☒ OTHER (explain):  Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant 
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  Acquisition of this property is significant as 
part of the total management project being carried out in the mountain Eco region.  The Wycle Fork Tract 
would be a significant part of the effort to protect, conserve, and manage properties in the Maggie Valley 
area.  The property contains Wycle Fork and several of its tributaries, as well as a tributary to Jonathans 
Creek and is located approximately 1 mile upstream of the Town of Maggie Valley drinking water supply 
intake on Jonathans Creek.  WRC ownership of the Wycle Fork Tract will increase conservation 
ownership of properties in the immediate area, such as the Great Smoky Mountains National Park, Blue 
Ridge Parkway, Pisgah and Nantahala National Forests, Cherokee Indian Reservation, and various private 
holdings that are in conservation ownership or have conservation easements.  In a broader sense, WRC 
ownership of the tract will help ensure ecosystem integrity at the landscape level by increasing 
connectivity of lands in conservation ownership.  WRC ownership will preserve and protect southeastern 
mountain riparian forest and headwater streams and habitat, as well as preserve and protect the quality of 
an active drinking water supply, thereby protecting the health of citizens and maintaining cost efficiency 
of water treatment.      
 
 



 
 
 
Management objectives will include protecting, maintaining and/or restoring priority wildlife habitats, 
and providing public opportunities for hunting and other outdoor recreational activities.  WRC ownership 
will ensure that critical habitat for elk and other species is conserved, and provide opportunities for WRC 
staff to continue elk research and monitoring projects.  WRC ownership may also provide opportunities to 
create early successional habitat, which is also a priority wildlife habitat. 
 
Habitats present are primarily Appalachian oak forests, with cove forest and hemlock also present. 
 
Public recreational opportunities may include hunting, hiking, bird watching, photography, and general 
nature study.  Educational opportunities may exist as priority wildlife habitats are managed for or 
maintained. Common wildlife species found on the tract include wild turkey, black bear, white-tailed 
deer, gray squirrel, ruffed grouse as well as various songbirds, salamanders, and small mammals.    
 
Additional Comments:  The North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission does not have any public 
land inhabited by elk that can be managed for elk.  One of the major obstacles to elk management in 
North Carolina (outside of the Great Smoky Mountains National Park) is finding public lands that are 
suitable for development as elk habitat and for eventual use as a public hunting area.  There are a few 
areas on National Forest lands that are currently used by elk, but those lands may be restricted for 
management for elk under the current management restrictions of the US Forest Service. The Wycle Fork 
Tract is located in close proximity to other tracts in the project area.  Efforts are being made to investigate 
the possibilities of connecting the area tracts through additional acquisitions.  Future acquisitions to 
improve access to the tracts are also being investigated.  Acquisition of the Wycle Fork Tract will help 
achieve this goal.  The Wycle Fork Tract provides improved access from the 55 acre Silvers/Williams 
Tract, over to the 728 acre Silvers/Williams Tract.  Another goal of this purchase would be to acquire 
public land that already has elk on it, or in close proximity to it, that could be managed as elk habitat, or 
used for conducting elk research.  Having WRC owned land that can sustain a huntable elk herd is also a 
consideration.       
 
Estimated five-year stewardship expenditures include marking and maintaining 2.25 miles of property 
boundary at $1,822.50.  Opportunities to create early successional habitat may exist along the hardwood 
ridges, but further exploration is necessary to determine extent of habitat potential.   
 
No short-term revenue is anticipated.  
 
Program Potential:  ☒ Game Land ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area ☐ Fishing Access Area 

           ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal: state match rates):  Pittman- 
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition  
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 

29 of 30 



 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name    Wycle Fork Tract (Haywood County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  4 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

Yes 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

Yes 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 29 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Plethodon jordani Red-cheeked Salamander  

Plethodon ventralis Southern Zigzag Salamander SC

Desmognathus imitator Imitator Salamander  

Desmognathus santeetlah Santeetlah Dusky Salamander SR

Desmognathus wrighti Pygmy Salamander SR

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

Necturus maculosus Mudpuppy SC

Cryptobranchus alleganiensis Hellbender SC

BIRDS

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Falco peregrinus Peregrine Falcon E

Coccyzus erythropthalmus Black-billed Cuckoo SR

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Sphyrapicus varius Yellow-bellied Sapsucker  

Empidonax alnorum Alder Flycatcher SR

Empidonax minimus Least Flycatcher  

Corvus corax Common Raven  

Sitta canadensis Red-breasted Nuthatch  

Certhia americana Brown Creeper SC

Troglodytes troglodytes Winter Wren  

Regulus satrapa Golden-crowned Kinglet  

Vermivora chrysoptera Golden-winged Warbler SC

Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole  

MAMMALS

Sorex dispar Long-tailed Shrew SC

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew  

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat  

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat  

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis  

Myotis leibii Eastern Small-footed Myotis SC

Sylvilagus obscurus Appalachian Cottontail SR-G

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

Mustela nivalis Least Weasel SR-G

Spilogale putorius Eastern Spotted Skunk  

REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Apalone spinifera spinifera Eastern Spiny Softshell SC

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake  

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake  

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Wycle Fork  Tract (Haywood County) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

Great Smoky Mountains National Park

Blue Ridge Parkway

Blue Ridge Parkway
Wycle Fork

Ind
ian

 Cr
ee

k

Fie
 C

ree
k

Jonathans Creek

Ca
rp

en
ter

 B
ran

ch

De
ep

 G
ap

 B
ran

ch

Long Branch

Wolf Laurel Branch

Bu
nc

he
s C

ree
k

£¤19

Fi
e

To
p

Rd

Bl
ue

R
i d

ge
Pk

y

Black Camp Gap Rd Fr
an

k Mehaffey R d

Pl
es

s
U

nd
er

woo
d

Rd

Sheepback Mountain
Rd

K nob Dr

Bil ly
D

r

Sky Dr

Brenn
an

Rd

Cabin Fever Tr

Dream
w

eaver W
ay

Hoghea

vi
n

Hg
ts

Se
tzer Cove Rd

Bo dale
Dr

State Road 1302  

Va

lley Vis ta Rd

Low Gap Rd

Hannah Hill Rd

Brown Ridge Rd

R
en

a 
D

r

Cider Ridge  

Blue Ridge Pky

Sh
ee

pb
ac

k
M

ou
nt

ai
n

R
d

Blue Ridge Pky

M
ag

gi
e 

Va
lle

y

¬«215

¬«209

¬«110

£¤276

£¤19

£¤23

£¤74£¤276

§̈¦40

§̈¦40
Wycle Fork Tract
Haywood County

172 Acres

/March 27, 2016
0 0.5 10.25 Miles

Haywood
County

Sheepback Mtn Tract
(Closed March 2016)

Mashie Stomp Tract (Future)

_̂

Silvers Tract (Phase I Feb. 2014)

Wycle Fork Tract

Williams Tract (Future)



Black Camp Gap Rd

Cabin Fever Tr

Knob Dr

Rooster Rd

Black Camp Gap Rd

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

¬«215

¬«209

¬«110

£¤276

£¤19

£¤23

£¤74£¤276

§̈¦40

§̈¦40
Wycle Fork Tract
Haywood County

172 Acres

/March 27, 2016
0 500 1,000250 Feet

Haywood
County

_̂

Silvers Tract (Phase I Feb. 2014)

Wycle Fork Tract

Williams Tract (Future)










































	Agenda
	Exhibit A Minutes of 2/11/2016 Meeting
	Exhibit B Financial Report
	Exhibit C-1 Final Regs Frameworks for 2016-17 Hunting Seasons on Certain Migratory Game Birds
	Exhibit C-2 2016-17 Migratory Game Bird Season Options: Responses to Internet Questions
	Exhibit C-3 2016-17 Migratory Game Bird Gun Season Frameworks & WMD Staff Recommendations
	Exhibit C-4 Extended Falconry Season Highlights & WMD Staff Recommendations for 2016-17 Extended Falconry Seasons for Migratory Game Bird Species
	Exhibit D Staff Recommendations to Allow Take of Migrant Peregrine Falcons from the Wild for Use in Falconry 2016
	Exhibit E-1 Summary of Public Comments on Temporary Bear Rules
	Exhibit E-2 Temporary Rule-making for 15a NCAC 10B .0202 WM Division
	Exhibit F Phase I Bakers Lake Tract Bladen Co
	Exhibit F Map

	Exhibit G-1 Phase II  BRC 2016 Tracts Ashe Co
	Exhibit G-1 Map

	Exhibit G-2 Phase II  Bristol Creek Tracts Burke Co
	Exhibit G-2 Map

	Exhibit G-3 Phase II  Deviney 2014 Tract Rutherford Co
	Exhibit G-3 Map

	Exhibit G-4 Phase II  Deviney Brier Creek Tracts Rutherford Co
	Exhibit G-4 Map

	Exhibit G-5 Phase II  DMF Fisherman's Wharf Reallocation Hyde Co
	Exhibit G-5 Map

	Exhibit G-6 Phase II  DOA Ocean Isle Beach Reallocation Brunswick Co
	Exhibit G-6 Map

	Exhibit G-7 Phase II Eure_Horton Tracts Gates Co
	Exhibit G-7 Map

	Exhibit G-8 Phase II  Little Macedonia Tract Brunswick Co
	Exhibit G-8 Map

	Exhibit G-9 Phase II  McEachern Bladen Co
	Exhibit G-9 Map

	Exhibit G-10 Phase II Mashie Stomp Tract Haywood Co
	Exhibit G-10 Map

	Exhibit G-11 Phase II  Wycle Fork Tract Haywood Co
	Exhibit G-11 Map

	Exhibit H-1 Periodic Review of Rules: Motorboats and Water Safety
	Exhibit H-2 Periodic Review of Rules: Regulated Activities
	Exhibit I No Wake Zone, Slocum Creek, Havelock
	Exhibit J Temporary Rulemaking for Amendment 15A NCAC 10F .0330 Carteret Co
	EXHIBIT K-1 Fiscal Note of Proposed No-Wake Zone Rule Amendment, Arrowhead Beach Subdivision, Chowan Co
	EXHIBIT K-2 Proposed Permanent Rulemaking Amendment, Arrowhead Beach Subdivision,  Chowan Co



